Filed
Tarrant County Clerk
December 3, 2025 05:58 pm

TARRANT COUNTY Mary Louise Nicholson
COMMISSIONERS COURT County Clerk
AGENDA By: Shay Stroik

Commissioners Courtroom
Tarrant County Administration Building
100 East Weatherford Street, 5th Floor
Fort Worth, Texas 76196

Tuesday, December 9, 2025, 10:00 AM

ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ADDRESS THE COMMISSIONERS COURT AT ITS NEXT POSTED REGULAR
MEETING. YOU MAY SUBMIT A PUBLIC PARTICIPATION FORM USING THE LINK ON THE COMMISSIONERS COURT AGENDA
WEBPAGE AT WWW.TARRANTCOUNTYTX.GOV OR IN-PERSON USING THE FORMS AVAILABLE INSIDE THE COUNTY
ADMINISTRATOR’S OFFICE. PLEASE INDICATE WHETHER YOU ARE ADDRESSING AN ITEM ON THE POSTED REGULAR AGENDA
OR WHETHER PROVIDING GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS. COMPLETED FORMS MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE COUNTY
ADMINISTRATOR’S OFFICE BY 5:00 PM ON THE DAY BEFORE THE REGULAR POSTED MEETING. REGARDLESS OF THE DESIRED
METHOD TO ADDRESS THE COURT, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION FORMS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED PRIOR TO THE POSTING OF THE
AGENDA. IT IS THE INTENT OF THE COMMISSIONERS COURT TO HAVE A QUORUM PRESENT IN THE COMMISSIONERS
COURTROOM LOCATED AT 100 EAST WEATHERFORD STREET, 5TH FLOOR, FORT WORTH, TEXAS 76196. SOME MEMBERS OF THE
COMMISSIONERS COURT MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY VIDEO-CONFERENCE CALL. A VIDEO AND AUDIO FEED OF
ANY COURT MEMBER PARTICIPATING BY VIDEO-CONFERENCE CALL WILL BE BROADCAST LIVE IN THE COMMISSIONERS
COURT ROOM, WHICH WILL BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC DURING THE MEETING. THE TARRANT COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT
MAY CONVENE INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NECESSARY, TO CONDUCT A CLOSED MEETING TO DISCUSS ANY ITEM LISTED
ON THIS AGENDA IF THE SUBJECT MATTER IS PERMITTED FOR A CLOSED SESSION BY PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 551 OF THE
TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE.

10:00 AM OPEN MEETING, BRIEFING AGENDA AND PUBLIC HEARINGS IN COMMISSIONERS COURTROOM

10:00 AM CLOSED MEETING UPON COMPLETION OF OPEN MEETING OR 10:00 AM, WHICHEVER IS LATER

THE COMMISSIONERS COURT MEETING SHALL CONTINUE FROM HOUR-TO-HOUR AND DAY-TO-DAY UNTIL OFFICIALLY
ADJOURNED.

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

II. INVOCATION

III. PLEDGES OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
IV. AGENDA ANNOUNCEMENTS

V. COMMISSIONERS COURT ANNOUNCEMENTS

VI. PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND PRESENTATIONS


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http://www.tarrantcounty.com/&data=05|01|LMcMillan@TarrantCounty.com|14b15064ed6d496e11bc08da285c8551|0ad2db0e41de43fe946cd2cad05bd94d|0|0|637866675079827696|Unknown|TWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0=|3000|||&sdata=RX2V2cvhSk1/iIuFWGymjSkIjL/K0CnqBkZinHxOeWE=&reserved=0

1. Proclamation - Recognizing the Carroll ISD Lady Dragons, UIL 6A D2 Volleyball State Champions (Judge O'Hare and

Commissioner Krause)

2. Proclamation - Recognizing the Eagle Mountain-Saginaw ISD Lady Knights, UIL 4A D2 Volleyball State Champions

(Commissioner Ramirez)

3. Congratulatory Resolution - Ron Lewis, Deputy Director, Tarrant County Juvenile Services (Commissioner Miles)
4. Memorial Resolution - Bishop Kenneth Bernard Spears (Commissioner Miles)

5. Memorial Resolution - Honoring the Life and Legacy of Elzie Odom (Commissioner Simmons)

6. Resolution - Honoring Cresson Volunteer Fire Department Operations Chief Richard Ward for Heroic Actions on
September 1, 2025 (Commissioner Simmons)

7. Resolution - 40th Anniversary of Tarrant County 911 (Commissioner Ramirez)

8. Employee Recognition (Judge O'Hare)

VII. CONSENT AGENDA

A. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES

1. Consideration to Approve the Minutes of November 11, 2025

B. VARIOUS CLAIMS AND ADDENDUM

1. Consideration of Various Claims and Addendum

C. Administrator

1. Consideration of the Issuance of Series 2026 Hospital Revenue Bonds in One or More Series by the Tarrant County
Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation for Methodist Hospitals of Dallas d/b/a Methodist Health System in an
Amount not to Exceed $220,000,000

2. Consideration of Amendment No. 2 to the Participation Agreement for the Town of Trophy Club Tax Increment

Financing Zone Number 1

D. Archives

1. Consideration to Accept Monetary Donations from Various Individuals to the Tarrant County Archives

E. Auditor

1. Consideration to Request Written Report of Finances for Fiscal Year 2025 Under Health & Safety Code Section
775.036 from Tarrant County Emergency Services District No. 1

2. Receive and File the Tarrant County Financial Statements for the Twelve Months Ended September 30, 2025

3. Receive and File the Auditor's Report of the Fiscal Year 2025 Chapter 59 Asset Forfeiture Report Prepared by the
Constable, Precinct 7

4. Receive and File the Auditor's Report of the Fiscal Year 2025 Chapter 59 Asset Forfeiture Report Prepared by the
District Attorney's Office



5. Receive and File the Auditor's Report for the Cash and Other Remittances Control Review of the Community
Supervision and Corrections Department

F. Budget and Risk Management

1. Consideration of an Interlocal Agreement between Tarrant County and My Health My Resources of Tarrant County for
the Operation of the Mental Health Jail Diversion Center

2. Consideration of Fourth Amendment to the Interlocal Agreement between Tarrant County and Tarrant County
Emergency Services District No. 1

3. Consideration of Risk Management Board Minutes and Recommended Claims

4. Consideration of Fiscal Year 2025 and Fiscal Year 2026 Appropriation Adjustments

G. Community Development

1. Request for Public Hearing - Tuesday, January 13, 2026, at 10:00 A.M. - To Consider Amendment No. 1 to the Tarrant
County 2025-2029 Consolidated Plan and Program Year 2025 Action Plan

2. RFQ-2025ENG-54-50 Consideration of an Engineering Contract between Tarrant County and MJ Thomas Engineering
for the City of River Oaks 51st Year Community Development Block Grant Project

3. Consideration of a Community Development Block Grant Subrecipient Agreement between Tarrant County and
SafeHaven of Tarrant County for the Provision of Educational Services to Youth

4. Consideration of Program Year 2025 Emergency Solutions Grant Program Subrecipient Agreements between Tarrant
County and Non-Profit Agencies in Tarrant County for Emergency Shelter Operations

5. Consideration of Change Order No. 1 to the Construction Contract between Tarrant County and Leetech Services LLC
for the City of Blue Mound, Texas 50th Year Community Development Block Grant Project

6. Consideration of Change Order No. 1 to the Construction Contract between Tarrant County and EGW Services for the
City of Kennedale, Texas 50th Year Community Development Block Grant Project

H. County Clerk
1. Receive and File the County Clerk's Monthly Report - October 2025

I. Criminal Courts

1. Consideration of a Contract between Tarrant County and MHMR of Tarrant County for Services Related to the In-
Custody Batterers Intervention Program and the Youthful Offenders Diversion Alternative Program

J. District Attorney

1. Consideration of Memorandum of Understanding between Tarrant County, d/b/a Tarrant County Criminal District
Attorney’s Office and Tarrant County College District for Use of the Firing Range

2. Receive and File the Tarrant County Adult Sexual Assault Response Team Biennial Report

K. Elections Administration



1. Consideration to Authorize the Elections Administrator to Send Written Notifications of Proposed Voting Precinct
Boundary Changes, Approve and Implement Voting Precinct Boundary Changes, and Publish Notice of Voting Precinct
Boundary Changes Under Election Code Chapter 42 As Necessary to Comply With Future Court Orders Issued in League
of United Latin American Citizens, et al. v. Abbott

L. Facilities Management

1. Consideration of a Property Use Request from Justice of the Peace, Precinct 7 to Use the Subcourthouse at Mansfield to
Conduct Weekend Weddings

2. Consideration to Temporarily Change the Lighting of the 1895 Courthouse for Sundance Square's New Year's Eve 2026
Celebration

3. Consideration of a Professional Services Contract with Baird, Hampton and Brown for Engineering Services for the
Lighting Upgrade Project at the Correction Center

4. Consideration of Change Order No. 1 to Fast-Trak Construction, Inc. Construction Services Contract for the Precinct 2

Open Garage

5. Consideration of a Parking License Agreement between Tarrant County and Cassata for Parking Spaces Located at
1400 Hemphill Street, Fort Worth, Texas

M. HIV Administration

1. Consideration of Interim Funding for Fiscal Year 2026 Health Resources and Services Administration Ryan White Part
C Grant

2. Consideration to Submit the Texas Department of State Health Services Fiscal Year 2026-2027 Ryan White Part B
Services Grant Renewal Application

3. Consideration of Amendment No. 2 to the Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Health Resources and Services Administration Ryan
White Treatment Extension Act Part A Provider Contract with Harvesting International Ministry Center, Inc.

4. Consideration of Amendment No. 3 to the Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Health Resources and Services Administration Ryan
White Treatment Extension Act Part A Subrecipient Contract with The Salvation Army

5. Consideration of Amendment No. 3 to Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Health Resources and Services Administration Ryan
White Treatment Extension Act Part A Subrecipient Contract with Tarrant County Public Health — Preventive Medicine
Clinic

6. Consideration of Amendment No. 3 to the Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Health Resources and Services Administration Ryan

White Treatment Extension Act Part A Subrecipient Contract with AIDS Healthcare Foundation

7. Consideration of Amendment No. 3 to the Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Health Resources and Services Administration Ryan
White Treatment Extension Act Part A Subrecipient Contract with Tarrant County Hospital District

N. Human Resources

1. Consideration of Professional Services Agreements with ABBA Staffing Consulting and Ad-A-Staff for Typing Test
Services

2. Consideration of Administrative Agreements and Implementation Documents between Tarrant County and The
Standard Insurance Company for Voluntary Benefits Effective January 1, 2026



3. Consideration to Authorize the Reassignment of Certain Chapter 54 Magistrate(s) to Chapter 54A Criminal Associate
Judge(s)

4. Consideration of a Master Worksite Training Employer Agreement with Workforce Solutions for Tarrant County to
Support Intern Onboarding Through the Work Experience Program

5. Receive and File the Personnel Agenda

O. Information Technology

1. Consideration of an Agreement between Tarrant County and Tyler Technologies to Implement a Secure Positive Pay

Process in the Jury Manager System

P. Public Health

1. Consideration of a Provider Services Agreement with Molina HealthCare of Texas, Inc. for Reimbursement of Eligible
Clinical Health Care Services Provided by Tarrant County Public Health

2. Consideration of a Participating Provider Agreement with Superior HealthPlan, Inc., and its Affiliates, for
Reimbursement of Eligible Clinical Health Care Services Provided by Tarrant County Public Health

3. Consideration of a Participating Provider Agreement with Oscar Insurance Company and its Affiliates and Third-Party
Administrator for Reimbursement of Eligible Clinical Health Care Services Provided by Tarrant County Public Health

4. Consideration of a Service Provider Agreement between Tarrant County and Dr. Daniel E. Rousch, DO, to Provide
Psychiatric Services

Q. Purchasing
1. RFO No. F2026036 - Purchase of Palo Alto Premium Support Renewals- #DIR-CP0O-4846 - Information Technology -
Kudelski Security, Inc.

a) Award Recommendation

2. Approval of Exemption from Competitive Bidding Requirements - Purchase of Reagents, Controls, Equipment Parts,
and Proficiency Testing Materials - Public Health - Various Vendors
a) Approval of Exemption from Competitive Bidding

3. RFP No. F2023193 - Annual Contract for Inmate Commissary, Banking, and Deposit/Release Services - Sheriff's
Office - Keefe Commissary Network LLC - Exercise Second Option for Renewal - Same Contract Terms

a) Contract Renewal

4. RFP No. F2024017 - Annual Contract for Defendant-Paid Substance Abuse Outpatient Treatment Services -
Community Supervision and Corrections Department - Various Vendors - Exercise Second and Final Renewal Option for
Renewal - Same Contract Terms

a) Contract Renewal

5. RFP No. F2024023 - Annual Contract for Disaster Debris Removal, Reduction, Disposal, and Other Emergency
Related Services - Emergency Management - Various Vendors - Exercise Second and Final Option for Renewal - Same
Contract Terms

a) Contract Renewal



6. RFP No. F2024026 - Annual Contract for Marketing Services - Countywide - Various Vendors - Exercise Second and
Final Option for Renewal - Same Contract Terms

a) Contract Renewal

7. RFQ No. F2024091 - Annual Contract for Tissue Bank Services - Medical Examiner’s Office - Various Vendors -
Exercise First Option for Renewal - Same Contract Terms
a) Contract Renewal

8. Bid No. F2024111 - Annual Contract for Aftermarket Automotive Parts - Countywide - Various Vendors - Exercise
Second and Final Option for Renewal - Same Firm Fixed Prices and Discount from List Price

a) Contract Renewal

9. Bid No. F2024116 - Annual Contract for OEM Service and Parts - Countywide - Various Vendors - Exercise Second
and Final Option for Renewal - Same Firm Fixed Prices and Hourly Rates
a) Contract Renewal

10. Bid No. F2024117 - Annual Contract for Emergency Equipment - Countywide - Various Vendors - Exercise Second
and Final Option for Renewal - Same Firm Fixed Prices and Discount from List Price

a) Contract Renewal

11. RFP No. F2024134 - Annual Contract for Facilities Construction Projects Management Software - Facilities
Management - Systemates, Inc. - Exercise First Option for Renewal - Same Contract Terms

a) Contract Renewal

12. RFP No. F2025013 - Annual Contract for Drug and Alcohol Laboratory Testing Services - Community Supervision
and Corrections Department - Various Vendors - Exercise First Option for Renewal - Same Contract Terms

a) Contract Renewal

13. Bid No. F2025028 - Annual Contract for Pre-Sort Bulk Mail Services - Countywide - TC Delivers, LLC - Exercise
First Option for Renewal - Same Per Discount from Postage Rate
a) Contract Renewal

14. Bid No. F2025029 - Annual Contract for Copy Paper - Countywide - Various Vendors - Exercise First and Final
Option for Renewal - Same Firm Fixed Prices

a) Contract Renewal

15. Bid No. F2025042 - Annual Contract for Bobtail Truck Rentals - Elections Administration - Enterprise Holdings -
Exercise First Option for Renewal - Same Firm Fixed Prices

a) Contract Renewal

16. Bid No. F2025043 - Annual Contract for Short-Term Rentals of Cars, Trucks, and Vans - Elections Administration -
Various Vendors - Exercise First Option for Renewal - Same Firm Fixed Prices

a) Contract Renewal

17. Bid No. F2025062 - Annual Contract for Biomedical and Hazardous Waste Pickup and Disposal - Countywide -
Various Vendors - Exercise First Option for Renewal - Same Firm Fixed Prices

a) Contract Renewal



18. Bid No. F2025076 - Annual Contract for Installation and Removal of Guard Fence - All Precincts - Vann/Elli, Inc. -
Exercise First Option for Renewal - Same Firm Fixed Prices

a) Contract Renewal

19. Bid No. F2025077 - Annual Contract for Preventative Maintenance and Cleaning of Commercial Kitchen Vent Hoods
and Ceiling Registers, and Deep Cleaning Services - Facilities Management - Various Vendors - Exercise First Option for
Renewal - Same Firm Fixed Prices

a) Contract Renewal

20. Bid No. F2025015 - Annual Contract for Various Concrete Services - Countywide - Reliable Paving, Inc.

a) Acceptance of Payment Bond

21. Bid No. F2025184 - Annual Contract for Mechanical and Plumbing Services - Facilities Management - Enviromatic
Systems of Fort Worth, Inc.

a) Acceptance of Payment Bond

22. Bid No. F2025099 - Annual Contract for Carpet, Tile and Miscellaneous Flooring Materials and Services - Facilities
Management - DMCA, Inc.

a) Acceptance of Payment Bond

b) Acceptance of Performance Bond

23. Euna Solutions, Inc. — Euna Procurement Powered by lonWave - Purchasing
a) Sole Source Designation

b) Contract Approval

24. Nova Biomedical - Maintenance for NOVA Electrolyte Instrument - Medical Examiner's Office
a) Sole Source Designation

b) Contract Approval

25. Groupware Technologies, LLC - HIV-AIDS Client Eligibility and Management System - HIV Administrative Agency
a) Sole Source Renewal

26. Consideration of Contract - RFP No. F2025162 - Annual Contract for Liquid Chromatography-Mass Spectrometry
Instrument and Maintenance - Medical Examiner's Office - Thermo Electron North America, LLC - Per Contract Terms
a) Contract Approval

27. Consideration of Cooperative with Texas Smart Buy for Vehicle Rental Services - Texas Smart Buy Contract #975-C1
- Countywide - Enterprise Holdings, Inc.

28. Consideration of Interlocal Agreement between Tarrant County and White Settlement Independent School District for
Cooperative Purchasing of Goods and Services
a) Contract Approval

R. Resource Connection

1. Consideration of Amendment No. 1 to the Lease Agreement between Tarrant County and Texas A&M AgriLife
Services for Space Located at the Resource Connection

S. Sheriff



1. Consideration of Fiscal Year 2026 Agency Interlocal Assistance Agreement with the City of Bedford for Participation
in the Tarrant Regional Auto Crimes Task Force

2. Consideration of a Subscription Services Agreement with LeadsOnline, LLC for Access to and Usage of the
LeadsOnline PowerPlus Investigations System

T. Tax Assessor-Collector

1. Consideration of Tax Office Deputizations

U. Transportation

1. Consideration to Enter into an Advanced Funding Agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation for the
Reconstruction of US 81 County Line to Avondale Haslet

2. Consider Release of the Construction Bond for the Construction Phase and Acceptance of the Maintenance Bond for
the Maintenance Phase of the Wyldewood Subdivision - Precinct 2

3. Consideration of Quitclaim Deeds Conveying Any Interest Tarrant County May Own in Right-of-Way for a Roadway
Known as Old Handley Ederville Road

4. Consideration of a Donation Agreement between Tarrant County and Sandstrom Business Park, LTD. to Fund
Improvements to Grants Lane - Precinct 4

5. Consideration of an Interlocal Agreement with the City of Hurst for the Striping of Northeast Mall Boulevard and West
Cheryl Avenue - Precinct 3

6. Consideration of an Interlocal Agreement with the City of Fort Worth for the Aledo Road Project - Precinct 4

7. Consideration of an Interlocal Agreement between Tarrant County and the City of Forest Hill Related to the
Cooperative Funding of the Wichita Street Widening Project - 2021 Transportation Bond Program

8. Consideration of Amendment No. 1 to the Interlocal Agreement with the City of Colleyville Related to the John
McCain Road Bridge Widening and Curvature Improvements Project - 2006 Transportation Bond Program

9. Consideration to Rescind Court Order No. 145789 and Reconsideration of Final Plat - Park Drive Subdivision -
Precinct 4

10. Consideration of Final Plat with Variance - Harmon Road Addition - Precinct 4

11. Receive and File Final Plat - J & R Addition - Precinct 2

V. Commissioner Precinct 1

1. Consideration of a Grant Agreement between Tarrant County and The National Coalition of 100 Black Women, Inc.
Fort Worth Metropolitan Chapter to Provide Support Services to Tarrant County Residents

2. Consideration of Amendment No. 1 to Community Grant Agreement between Tarrant County and Crowley ISD to
Provide Support Services to Tarrant County Residents

W. Commissioner Precinct 3

1. Consideration of Agreements with Various Organizations for the Provision of Transportation Services to the Residents

of Tarrant County, Precinct 3



X. Commissioner Precinct 4

1. Consideration of a Request to Hold the 2026 Tarrant County Junior Livestock Show at the Will Rogers Memorial
Center and Finding of a Direct Public Purpose

VIII. PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. Public Hearing - To Consider Authorizing a Stop Sign on Mustang Wells Drive at the Intersection with Ben Day Murrin
Road - Precinct 2
a) Conduct Public Hearing

b) Action, If Necessary

2. Public Hearing - To Consider Establishing a Speed Limit of 35 MPH on Eagle Mountain Circle - Precinct 4
a) Conduct Public Hearing
b) Action, If Necessary

IX. REPORTS AND BUSINESS

A. Administrator

1. Consideration of a Resolution to Nominate an Individual to the Tarrant Appraisal District Board of Advisors
2. Consideration of Out-of-State Travel Requests
3. Consideration of an Exception to the Travel Policy

4. Consideration of Initial Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment No. 2 between Tarrant County Hospital District, d/b/a
JPS Health Network and J.E. Dunn Construction for Services Related to the Central Utility Plant Project

5. Consideration of the Initial Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment No. 2 between Tarrant County Hospital District,
d/b/a JPS Health Network and J.E. Dunn-Source, A Joint Venture, for Services Related to the Medical Outpatient Building

Project

6. Consideration of the Third Amendment to a Lease Agreement between Tarrant County Hospital District, d/b/a JPS
Health Network and Oral and Maxillofacial Network, PLLC for Clinic Space Located at 1625 St. Louis Street, Fort
Worth, Texas

B. Elections Administration

1. Consideration to Approve an Order Calling a Special Runoff Election on January 31, 2026

2. Consideration to Approve Proposed Election Day Polling Locations for the January 31, 2026 Special Runoff Election
for Senate District 9

3. Consideration to Approve Proposed Early Voting Dates, Times and Polling Locations for the January 31, 2026
Congressional District 9 Runoff Election

C. Facilities Management

1. Consideration of a Building Renovation of the Records Room of 350 W Belknap Building for the City of Fort Worth
Video Magistrate Court

D. Human Resources



1. Consideration of Options Regarding the Tarrant County 457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan Agreement with Lincoln
Financial Group

E. Purchasing
1. RFP No. F2025179 - Annual Contract for Audio Transcription Services - Sheriff’s Office - Athreon Corporation - Per

Contract Terms

a) Award Recommendation

b) Contract Approval

2. Bid No. F2026010 - Annual Contract for Preventative Maintenance and Repair of Air Compressors - Facilities
Management - TDIndustries, Inc. - Per Unit Price, Hourly Rates, and Markup for Parts

a) Award Recommendation

3. Bid No. F2026012 - Annual Contract for Grease, Lint, Oil, and Sand Trap Cleaning Services - Facilities Management -
EnviroServe, Inc. - Per Unit Price and Hourly Rates

a) Award Recommendation

4. Bid No. F2026013 - Annual Contract for Quickbase Enterprise Platform Subscription - Public Health - Quickbase, Inc.

a) Award Recommendation

5. Bid No. F2026015 - Annual Contract for Window Washing Services - Facilities Management - Various Vendors - Per
Unit Price

a) Award Recommendation

6. Bid No. F2026020 - Purchase of Veeam Subscription Licenses - Information Technology - Asimer Tech, LLC

a) Award Recommendation

7. Bid No. F2026021 - Annual Contract for Specialized Electrical Services - Facilities Management - Various Vendors -
Per Hourly Rates

a) Award Recommendation

8. Bid No. F2026022 - Annual Contract for Preventative Maintenance and Repair of Conveyor System - Facilities
Management - Various Vendors - Per Unit Price, Hourly Rates, and Markup for Parts

a) Award Recommendation

9. Rescind Court Order #146190 - RFP No. F2025098 - Annual Contract for Grants Management Software and
Maintenance - Countywide - StreamLink Software, Inc. d/b/a AmpliFund - Per Contract Terms
a) Rescind Court Order #146190 and Award Recommendation

b) Contract Approval

10. RFP No. F2025156 - Annual Contract for Al Development Services - Information Technology
a) Reject All Proposals

b) Rebid with Revised Specifications

11. Permission to Take Bids/RFPs

X. APPOINTMENTS TO VARIOUS BOARDS



1. Action Concerning Appointments to Various Boards, Commissions, Committees, or Tax Increment Finance District
Boards

XI. BRIEFING

XII. PUBLIC COMMENTS

XIII. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMENTS
XIV. CLOSED MEETING

A. Pending or Contemplated Litigation
1. Shavon Tamez - CLAIM

2. Laureano Tamez - CLAIM
3. Zomnir v. Arroyo, Case No. 4:25-cv-172

4. Johnson v. Tarrant County, No. 25-10540

B. Advice of Counsel
C. Real Estate Matters
D. Contract Deliberations

E. Personnel Matters

1. Position No. 20000280

F. Security and Cybersecurity Related Issues
G. Economic Development Prospects

Closed Meeting upon completion of Open Meeting or at 10:00 a.m., whichever is later:

(A) to discuss advice about pending or contemplated litigation, a settlement offer, or on a matter in which the duty of
the attorney to the County under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas conflict
with the Texas Open Meeting Act, pursuant to Section 551.071, Texas Government Code;

(B) to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property, pursuant to Section 551.072, Texas
Government Code;

(C) to deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public
officer or employee, or to hear complaint or charge against an officer or employee pursuant to Section 551.074, Texas
Government Code;

(D) to deliberate the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of security personnel or devices, or a
security audit, pursuant to Section 551.076, Texas Government Code; and

(E) to deliberate a cybersecurity measure, policy or contract solely intended to protect a critical infrastructure facility
pursuant to Section 551.0761, Texas Government Code;

(F) to deliberate the business and financial issues related to a contract being negotiated, pursuant to Section 551.0725,
Texas Government Code.



(G) to deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the County has received from a business prospect
that the County seeks to have locate, stay, or expand near the County and with which the County is conducting
economic development negotiations, or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect,
pursuant to Section 551.087(1), Texas Government Code.

XV. COMMISSIONERS COURT RECONVENED

XVI. ADJOURNMENT

Filed
Tarrant County Clerk
December 3, 2025 05:58 pm
Mary Louise Nicholson
County Clerk
By: Shay Stroik

Date Posted: December 3, 2025 05:58 pm



TARRANT COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS COURT COMMUNICATION

Court Date: December 9, 2025 Court Order #: Page: | of 1
Department: County Judge Prepared By: Kim Ford Approved By: Kim Ford
SUBJECT:

Proclamation - Recognizing the Carroll ISD Lady Dragons, UIL 6A D2 Volleyball State Champions (Judge O'Hare and

Commissioner Krause)

See Attachment for Additional Information

Attachments

Proclamation Lady Dragons - Carroll ISD Volleyball.pdf



https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/692489fbc6a6310048e08219/Proclamation_Lady_Dragons_-_Carroll_ISD_Volleyball.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/692489fbc6a6310048e08219/Proclamation_Lady_Dragons_-_Carroll_ISD_Volleyball.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/692489fbc6a6310048e08219/Proclamation_Lady_Dragons_-_Carroll_ISD_Volleyball.pdf

PROCLAMATION
RECOGNIZING THE CARROLL LADY DRAGONS,
UIL 64 D2 STATE VOLLEYBALL CHAMPIONS

WHEREAS, the Carroll Lady Dragons Volleyball Team has demonstrated exemplary
teamwork, skill, athleticism, and dedication during their 2025 Championship run; and

WHEREAS, until this year, the Lady Dragons had not played in a State Championship
match since 1997; and

WHEREAS, despite trailing Austin High 2-1 in the state final, the Lady Dragons came
back to win the State Championship 3-2; and

WHEREAS, years of hard work, training, and diligence have delivered a historic victory
for the Lady Dragons, winning the first ever State Championship for the Carroll Volleyball
Program; and

WHEREAS, the Lady Dragons Volleyball Team was led by Head Coach Leslie Jackson,
and Assistant Coaches Rosana Barbosa, Madison Gregory, and Allison Loftin, and supported by
Superintendent Dr. Jeremy Glenn, Athletic Director Riley Dodge, School Board President
Cameron Bryan, and the Trustees; and

WHEREAS, the Lady Dragons Volleyball Team has brought great pride to Carroll ISD,
the City of Southlake, and Tarrant County, and we celebrate this extraordinary athletic
achievement; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that we, the Tarrant County Commissioners
Court, do hereby recognize the State Champion Carroll Lady Dragons Volleyball Team; and

FURTHER, we encourage the citizens of Tarrant County to acknowledge and congratulate
the Lady Dragons on their UIL 6A D2 State Championship.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunder set our hands and caused the Seal of
Tarrant County to be affixed this 9™ day of December 2025.



TARRANT COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS COURT COMMUNICATION

Court Date: December 9, 2025 Court Order #: Page: | of 1
Department: Prepared By: Emily Randolph Approved By: Manny Ramirez
SUBJECT:

Proclamation - Recognizing the Eagle Mountain-Saginaw ISD Lady Knights, UIL 4A D2 Volleyball State Champions
(Commissioner Ramirez)

See Attachment for Additional Information

Attachments

PROC - EM HS Girls Volleyball State Title 2025.pdf



https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/6924c988c6a6310048e25854/PROC_-_EM_HS_Girls_Volleyball_State_Title_2025.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/6924c988c6a6310048e25854/PROC_-_EM_HS_Girls_Volleyball_State_Title_2025.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/6924c988c6a6310048e25854/PROC_-_EM_HS_Girls_Volleyball_State_Title_2025.pdf

PROCLAMATION

Eagle Mountain — Saginaw ISD Lady Knights
UIL 4A D2 Volleyball State Champions

WHEREAS, on November 21, 2025, the Eagle Mountain High School Lady Knights Volleyball
Team, through diligence and perseverance, and with a season record of 38 wins and only 11
losses, defeated the defending champion Wimberley by a score of 3-1, thereby becoming the
Class 4A Division |l State Champions for the first time in the history of the school and the school
district; and,

WHEREAS, these exemplary young women—Lily Adams, Molly Aubert, Sophie Burdock, Cambri
Chukes, Lily George, Venissia Gonzalez, Madie Haney, Brooke Lacewell, Isabel Little, Abigail
Moore, Lexi Nichols, Londyn Roberts, Rylinn Roberts, Avery Williams, Keoni Williams, and Keylee
Williams—represented themselves, their families, their school, and Tarrant County with honor,
dignity, and an unwavering commitment to excellence; and,

WHEREAS, this team distinguished itself within District 7-4A through numerous accolades,
including: fourteen members named to the Academic All-District Team; three members named
to the District First Team; three members to the District Second Team; and three members
named to the District Honorable Mention Team. Furthermore, Sophie Burdock was designated
Server of the Year; Molly Aubert was designated Setter of the Year; and Brooke Lacewell and
Keoni Williams were jointly designated District Co-MVP; and,

WHEREAS, members of this team also garnered State 4A Division Il honors, including: Molly
Aubert, Keoni Williams, Brooke Lacewell, and Madie Haney named to the 4A Division Il State All-
Tournament Team, with Molly Aubert further recognized as MVP of the All-Tournament Team
and the Nike 4A-Division Il MVP; Brooke Lacewell named to the THSCA Academic All-State Team;
Sophie Burdock, Lexi Nichols, and Rylinn Roberts named to the THSCA Academic All-State
Honorable Mention Team; and Keoni Williams named the UA Next All-American; and,

WHEREAS, Head Coach Catherine Forester, along with Assistant Coaches Hannah Seguin, Erinn
Jayjohn, Michelle Cook, and Alisandra Montemayor, who provided steadfast support and
guidance throughout the season, were collectively honored as the District 7-4A Coaching Staff
of the Year.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that we, the Commissioners Court of Tarrant County do
hereby issue this Proclamation to the Eagle Mountain High School Lady Knights Volleyball Team
and their coaching staff in recognition of their extraordinary achievements, and we extend our
congratulations.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set my hand and caused the Great Seal of Tarrant
County to be affixed this 9*" day of December 2025.



TARRANT COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS COURT COMMUNICATION

Court Date: December 9, 2025 Court Order #: Page: | of 1

Department: Commissioner, Precinct

) Prepared By: Leon Polk Approved By: Leon Polk

SUBJECT:
Congratulatory Resolution - Ron Lewis, Deputy Director, Tarrant County Juvenile Services (Commissioner Miles)

See Attachment for Additional Information

Attachments

Ron Lewis.pdf


https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/692080257a065d004b9b3d88/Ron_Lewis.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/692080257a065d004b9b3d88/Ron_Lewis.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/692080257a065d004b9b3d88/Ron_Lewis.pdf

Congratulatory Resolution
Ron Lewis, Deputy Director
Tarrant County Juvenile Services

WHEREAS, Ron Lewis was born in Texarkana, Texas, graduated from Copperas Cove High School in
1984, and earned a bachelor’s degree in criminal justice in 1989 from Texas Christian University; and

WHEREAS, Ron Lewis’ career in juvenile justice began at the Fort Worth State School where he
supervised group homes serving justice-involved youth with intellectual and developmental disabilities; and

WHEREAS, Ron Lewis joined Tarrant County Juvenile Services as a Detention Olfficer, promoted to
Shift Supervisor in 1995, and in 2007 was promoted to Deputy Assistant Director of Institutional Services,
providing oversight of the Detention Center’s Pre- and Post-Adjudication programs; and

WHEREAS, Ron Lewis was promoted to Deputy Director in 2017, assumed responsibility for the
overall operations of the department, and has now served in the juvenile justice profession for 36 years, and

WHEREAS, Ron Lewis has had the distinct honor of representing the North Texas Chiefs Association
on the Texas Juvenile Justice Department Advisory Council, where he contributed to the rewrite of the Texas
Administrative Code for Pre- and Post-Adjudication correctional standards, and for this work, the advisory
council was formally recognized by the Texas Juvenile Justice Department Board of Directors for its leadership
and statewide impact; and

WHEREAS, Ron Lewis has served on the Tarrant County Human Trafficking Advisory Commiittee,
helping to establish the Care Coordination Team and implement protocols to respond effectively to victims of
human trafficking, and currently serves on the Board of Directors for Gill Children’s Services, and the TCU
National Alumni Board; and

WHEREAS, one of Ron Lewis’ most valued accomplishments has been to foster an organizational
culture rooted in collaboration across divisions, aligned with a mission of transforming youth, reducing juvenile
delinquency, and strengthening community safety; and

WHEREAS, Ron Lewis has provided invaluable leadership and guidance on many significant projects
and challenges Tarrant County has faced and will forever be regarded as a respected member of our community
whose impact will remain as a central element of the continued success of the Tarrant County community; and

WHEREAS, Ron Lewis has been married to his wife, Kim for 36 years, are the proud parents of twin
daughters, Jessica and LaTasha, and are blessed with three grandchildren, Stasha, Brooklynn, and Brailynn.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that we, the Commissioners Court of Tarrant County, do
hereby recognize and congratulate Ron Lewis for 34 years of dedicated service to Tarrant County Juvenile
Services and for the numerous contributions he has made to the citizens of Tarrant County.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and caused the Seal of Tarrant County to
be affixed this 9th day of December 2025.

(Over Entire Court signatures)



TARRANT COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS COURT COMMUNICATION

Court Date: December 9, 2025 Court Order #: Page: | of 1

Department: Commissioner, Precinct

) Prepared By: Leon Polk Approved By: Leon Polk

SUBJECT:
Memorial Resolution - Bishop Kenneth Bernard Spears (Commissioner Miles)

See Attachment for Additional Information

Attachments

Bishop Kenneth B. Spears.pdf



https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691e37449b2f6c0038faf12a/Bishop_Kenneth_B._Spears.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691e37449b2f6c0038faf12a/Bishop_Kenneth_B._Spears.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691e37449b2f6c0038faf12a/Bishop_Kenneth_B._Spears.pdf

Memorial Resolution
Bishop Kenneth Bernard Spears
First Saint John Cathedral

WHEREAS, the family and friends of Bishop Kenneth Bernard Spears were deeply saddened by his death
on Monday, November 17, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the passing of Bishop Spears took from our community an outstanding spiritual leader,
servant, mentor, father, and friend; and

WHEREAS, Bishop Spears, a native of Fort Worth, has served as Pastor of the First Saint John
Missionary Baptist Church since 1995 and by the guiding of the Holy Spirit, has helped transition the 110-year-old
church into the 21* century, and

WHEREAS, Bishop Spears attended Bishop College in Dallas, Texas, earned a bachelor’s degree at
United Theological Seminary in Texarkana, Texas, a master’s degree from Survine Theological College in Denver,
Colorado, and an Honorary Doctor of Humanities Degree from Louisiana Baptist University in Shreveport,
Louisiana; and

WHEREAS, Bishop Spears answered his call to ministry in 1981 at the age of 17 while a student in the
Fort Worth Independent School District: and

WHEREAS, Bishop Spears leadership and vision was evident not only through his ministry but through his
commitment to the community, and

WHEREAS, Bishop Spears was the founder and CEO of My Community First Community Development
Corporation, Chairman of the Black Voters Impact Committee, served on the McDonald Southeast YMCA Board of
Managers, Fort Worth ISD Adopt-a-School Program, JPS Health Network Advisory Board, 60 & Better, Baptist
Minister’s Union, and the Black Ecumenical Leadership Alliance; and

WHEREAS, Bishop Spears served as District Overseer of the Full Gospel Baptist Church Fellowship in
2000, appointed State Overseer for North Texas in 2004, consecrated to the office of Bishop in 2005 serving North
Texas for the Full Gospel Baptist Church Fellowship, and elevated to the Bishops Council in 2012 with the
responsibility of promoting growth of the Full Gospel Baptist Fellowship,; and

WHEREAS, Bishop Kenneth Bernard Spears, a strong pillar of his community, leaves a legacy of love as
he is survived by his wife, Angela and their two sons, Kenneth Samuel and Kyle Brandon.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that we, the Commissioners Court of Tarrant County pay
tribute and celebrate the life and legacy of a Beloved and Honorable Man of God, recognize the contributions he
has made to the people of Tarrant County, and extend our deepest sympathy to the members of his family and his
many friends for their great loss.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and caused the Seal of Tarrant County to be
affixed this 9" day of December 2025.

(Over Entire Court signatures)



TARRANT COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS COURT COMMUNICATION

Court Date: December 9, 2025 Court Order #: Page: 1 of 1

Department: Commissioner, Precinct

) Prepared By: Stefanye Adkins Approved By: Albert Roberts

SUBJECT:
Memorial Resolution - Honoring the Life and Legacy of Elzie Odom (Commissioner Simmons)

See Attachment for Additional Information

Attachments

Resolution Honoring the Life and Legacy of Elzie Odom (002).pdf



https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691f44469b2f6c0038fe359e/Resolution_Honoring_the_Life_and_Legacy_of_Elzie_Odom__002_.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691f44469b2f6c0038fe359e/Resolution_Honoring_the_Life_and_Legacy_of_Elzie_Odom__002_.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691f44469b2f6c0038fe359e/Resolution_Honoring_the_Life_and_Legacy_of_Elzie_Odom__002_.pdf

Resolution Honoring the Life and Legacy of Elzie Odom

WHEREAS, the Tarrant County Commissioners Court and the citizens of Tarrant County
mourn the passing of former Arlington Mayor Elzie Delano Odom on November 17, 2025; and

WHEREAS, Mayor Odom was born on May 10, 1929, in Newton County, Texas, and was raised
in the historic freedom colony of Shankleville, Texas, grounding his life in the values of
community, hard work, and service; and

WHEREAS, prior to his political career, he served his country with distinction as a dedicated
employee of the United States Postal Service for over three decades, notably becoming one of the
nation’s first African American Postal Inspectors in 1967; and

WHEREAS, Mayor Odom became a true trailblazer, first by being elected the first African
American city official in Orange County in 1965, and later, becoming the first African American
elected to the Arlington City Council in 1990, where he served Place 4 until 1997; and

WHEREAS, as a councilman, he championed crucial civic projects, including serving as
President of the Arlington Sports Facilities Development Authority, overseeing the construction
of The Ballpark in Arlington, and successfully working to retain both the Texas Rangers and
General Motors’ Arlington Assembly within the city; and

WHEREAS, on May 6, 1997, he made history again by being elected the first African American
Mayor of the City of Arlington, serving with distinction until 2003; and

WHEREAS, during his tenure as Mayor, his administration’s major accomplishments included
advocating for Arlington youth, supporting programs for seniors and citizens with disabilities,
increasing minority representation on city boards and commissions, and prudently guiding the
city to pay off The Ballpark in Arlington bond ahead of schedule; and

WHEREAS, his legacy is defined by his integrity, his commitment to making local government
reflective of its populace, and his pioneering spirit that opened paths for countless others in
Tarrant County; and

WHEREAS, we recognize that Mayor Elzie Odom's lifelong dedication to public service, his
family, including his wife Ruby Lee Truvillion Odom and his children, grandchildren, great-
grandchildren, and his community will be deeply missed but never forgotten.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Tarrant County Commissioners’ Court
hereby expresses its profound gratitude for the life and immeasurable contributions of Mayor
Elzie Odom.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Court extends its deepest sympathies to the Odom
family and directs that an official copy of this Resolution be presented to them as a token of the
community’s high esteem.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and caused the seal of Tarrant
County to be affixed this 9th day of December 2025.



TARRANT COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS COURT COMMUNICATION

Court Date: December 9, 2025 Court Order #: Page: | of 1

Department: Commissioner, Precinct

) Prepared By: Albert Roberts Approved By: Alisa Simmons

SUBJECT:

Resolution - Honoring Cresson Volunteer Fire Department Operations Chief Richard Ward for Heroic Actions on
September 1, 2025 (Commissioner Simmons)

See Attachment for Additional Information

Attachments

Resolution.Cresson.Fire.Chief.Ward.pdf



https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/692ef7cfc6a6310048f72d99/Resolution.Cresson.Fire.Chief.Ward.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/692ef7cfc6a6310048f72d99/Resolution.Cresson.Fire.Chief.Ward.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/692ef7cfc6a6310048f72d99/Resolution.Cresson.Fire.Chief.Ward.pdf

RESOLUTION HONORING CRESSON VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT OPERATIONS CHIEF
RICHARD WARD FOR HEROIC ACTIONS ON SEPTEMBER 1, 2025

WHEREAS, on Labor Day, Monday, September 1, 2025, at approximately 8:24 PM, the Cresson
Volunteer Fire Department was dispatched to a motor vehicle accident in the 8700 block of FM
1187 in southwestern Tarrant County involving multiple vehicles, entrapments, and a vehicle fire;
and

WHEREAS, Cresson Volunteer Fire Department Operations Chief Richard Ward responded
immediately, arriving on the scene just 3 minutes and 53 seconds after dispatch to find a
catastrophic and chaotic situation with debris and human remains scattered across the roadway
and one vehicle fully engulfed in flames; and

WHEREAS, upon arrival, Chief Ward quickly assessed the situation, stopping his vehicle away
from danger, rushing to the burning vehicle, and discovering a fatally injured passenger and a
trapped driver; and

WHEREAS, demonstrating remarkable composure, courage, and professionalism, Chief Ward
cut away the passenger’s seatbelt, removed her remains from the burning vehicle with the
assistance of bystanders, and then risked his own safety to rescue the surviving driver from the
fire through the passenger side; and

WHEREAS, within one minute and fifteen seconds after his arrival, Chief Ward had triaged six
patients, requested additional ambulances, and launched air medical transport for the rescued
driver, who later survived and was discharged from the ICU on September 27, 2025; and

WHEREAS, Chief Ward’s decisive leadership ensured all patients were treated, transported, or
ready for transport within 32 minutes of the initial call, earning unanimous commendation from
responding EMS agencies for his exceptional scene management; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that we, the Commissioners Court of Tarrant
County, with the deepest gratitude and respect for his service and heroism, hereby commends
Operations Chief Richard Ward of the Cresson Volunteer Fire Department for his extraordinary
bravery, swift action, and dedication to saving lives under extreme and dangerous circumstances
on September 1, 2025.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have here unto have set our hands and caused the Seal of Tarrant
County to be affixed this 9th day of December 2025



TARRANT COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS COURT COMMUNICATION

Court Date: December 9, 2025 Court Order #: Page: 1 of 1

Department: Commissioner, Precinct

4 Prepared By: Alicia Green Approved By: Tracey Knight

SUBJECT:
Resolution - 40th Anniversary of Tarrant County 911 (Commissioner Ramirez)

See Attachment for Additional Information

Attachments

TC911 40th Anniversay Resolution - Commissioners Court.pdf



https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691f9c874cf3e90032f0eb7f/TC911_40th_Anniversay_Resolution_-_Commissioners_Court.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691f9c874cf3e90032f0eb7f/TC911_40th_Anniversay_Resolution_-_Commissioners_Court.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691f9c874cf3e90032f0eb7f/TC911_40th_Anniversay_Resolution_-_Commissioners_Court.pdf

Resolution Celebrating the 40th Anniversary of the Tarrant County 9-1-1 Emergency
Assistance District

WHEREAS, the Tarrant County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District (District) is a communication
district and a political subdivision of the State of Texas, established and operated pursuant to
Texas Health and Safety Code, Chapter 772, Subchapter C, as amended; and

WHEREAS, the District was created on April 6, 1985, through state legislation and a vote of
Tarrant County citizens to enhance emergency response capabilities and ensure that residents
have reliable access to emergency services; and

WHEREAS, for 40 years, the District has served as a critical link between the public and
emergency responders, managing advanced technology and systems that route 9-1-1 calls
accurately and efficiently to the appropriate public safety answering points; and

WHEREAS, the District has continually embraced innovation, implementing Text-to-9-1-1,
upgrading to Next Generation 9-1-1 technology, and maintaining redundancies to ensure
uninterrupted service, thereby improving public safety for all residents, including vulnerable
populations; and

WHEREAS, the District’s mission remains steadfast: to provide prompt, reliable, and effective
emergency communication services that protect life and property throughout Tarrant County;
and

WHEREAS, the Commissioners Court recognizes the dedication of the District’s leadership, staff,
and partners who have worked tirelessly to advance emergency communication systems and
safeguard the community;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that we, the Commissioners Court of Tarrant County, do
hereby celebrate the 40th Anniversary of the Tarrant County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance
District, honor its vital contributions to public safety, and express profound appreciation for its
continued commitment to excellence and innovation in emergency communications.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be presented to the Tarrant County 9-
1-1 Emergency Assistance District as a token of gratitude and recognition for four decades of
outstanding service to the residents of Tarrant County, City of Irving, and Grand Prairie.

In Witness Whereof, we have, hereunto, set our hands and caused the seal of Tarrant County to
be affixed this___ day of , 2025.



TARRANT COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS COURT COMMUNICATION

Court Date: December 9, 2025 Court Order #: Page: | of 1
Department: Human Resources Prepared By: Jennifer Jones Approved By: Roxie Held
SUBJECT:

Employee Recognition (Judge O'Hare)

See Attachment for Additional Information

Attachments

Judge's Listing December 2025.pdf


https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691f84d49b2f6c0038ffdef5/Judge_s_Listing_December_2025.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691f84d49b2f6c0038ffdef5/Judge_s_Listing_December_2025.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691f84d49b2f6c0038ffdef5/Judge_s_Listing_December_2025.pdf

5 Year Employees
Sascha

Austin
Matthew
Sheree
Luis
Saheed
Morad
Hector
Sandra
Trevor
Jennifer

10 Year Employees
Juana

Gary

Darren

Leanna
William

15 Year Employees

*No Employees*

20 Year Employees
Ashley

Michael

Maleka

Raquel

Irma

Lorenzo
Elizabeth

25 Year Employees
Georgia
Jennifer

Maria

30 Year Employees
Dana

Total Years 350

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
December 9, 2025

Anderson
Bridges

Case

Coulter
Nieves Rosado
Runsewe
Sajaja
Segovia, Jr.
Torres Bonilla
Vanderpool
Weaver

Brinlee
Champagne
De La Cruz
Kirk
Redmon, Jr.

Barnes
Blanford
Gonzalez
Harmon
Jimarez
Macias

Wall Johnson

Crittenden
Hicks
Perez

Victorson

Department
Tax Office
Sheriff's Office
Juvenile Services
Sheriff's Office
Sheriff's Office
Sheriff's Office
Sheriff's Office
Sheriff's Office
Public Health
Sheriff's Office
Domestic Relations Office

Department
Criminal Courts

Facilities Management
Criminal District Attorney
County Clerk

Precinct 2

Department

Department
County Clerk

Juvenile Services
Sheriff's Office

Sheriff's Office

District Clerk

County Criminal Court 1
Tax Office

Department
County Criminal Court 7
Juvenile Services
Justice of the Peace 6

Department

Juvenile Services



TARRANT COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS COURT COMMUNICATION

Court Date: December 9, 2025 Court Order #: Page: | of 27
Department: County Clerk Prepared By: Shay Stroik Approved By: Vanessa Perez
SUBJECT:

Consideration to Approve the Minutes of November 11, 2025

See Attachment.

Attachments

Minutes November 11, 2025.pdf



https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/692f4553c6a6310048f99646/Minutes_November_11__2025.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/692f4553c6a6310048f99646/Minutes_November_11__2025.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/692f4553c6a6310048f99646/Minutes_November_11__2025.pdf

Volume: 141

SVX@‘}:.' %

MINUTES

TARRANT COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS COURT

Minutes of the Commissioners Court, Regular Term - REGULAR MEETING
Tuesday, November 11, 2025, 10:00 AM

All items have been so ordered. Official documents on file with the County Clerk

On Tuesday, November 11, 2025, at 10:00 AM the Honorable Commissioners Court of Tarrant County,
Texas met for Regular Term - Regular Meeting in the Commissioners Courtroom at the G.K. Maenius
Administration Building in the City of Fort Worth.

The Commissioners Court Clerk having called roll and a quorum being presented, Tim O'Hare, County Judge,
called the meeting to order with members present:

PRESENT

Presiding - County Judge - Tim O'Hare
Commissioner, Precinct 1 — Roderick Miles, Jr.
Commissioner, Precinct 2 - Alisa Simmons
Commissioner, Precinct 3 - Matt Krause
Commissioner, Precinct 4 - Manny Ramirez

and County Clerk Mary Louise Nicholson, represented by her duly appointed Deputy April Hanks, when
the following orders were made.

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
II. INVOCATION

Invocation was given by Aaron Crider, Captain in the United States Air Force and Chaplain of Fort Worth
Naval Air Station Joint Reserve Base in Fort Worth, Texas.



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

III. PLEDGES OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

Tarrant County Election Administrator Clint Ludwig and Director of Veterans Services Thomas
Belton, who both served in the Marine Corps, led us in the pledges.

IV.AGENDA ANNOUNCEMENTS

Items VI 7, VII G2, VII G3, VII G4 and sub items VIII F9t and VIII F9u were held.
Items VII C1, VII F8, VII F10, VII K6, VII N5, VII R1, VII R29, and VII R46 were pulled from the Consent
Agenda.

V.COMMISSIONERS COURT ANNOUNCEMENTS

Commissioner Miles thanked all the veterans for their service and sacrifices. He announced that Precinct 1
will be having their town hall meeting in partnership with the Center for Transforming Lives on November
18th at 3001 South Riverside Drive in Fort Worth, Texas at 6:00 p.m. He invites all to attend the Healthy
Lives Matter Prostate Screening Event on February 28, 2026 beginning at 10 a.m. at the Moncrief Cancer
Institute. He gave a shout out to North Crowley High School, Coach Gates and the amazing Panthers, who
will defend their state champion title against Keller High School on Thursday night. He congratulated the
Human Resources Director Roxie Held and her team on their first countywide benefit fair event. With
Thanksgiving season and the holiday season coming up he thanked and expressed his appreciation to all the
staff members and the hard work that they do.

Commissioner Krause thanked the veterans for their service and sacrifices. He recognized and honored the
students from the student voter empowerment club with HEB ISD.

Judge O'Hare mentioned in honor of adoption month that donations are being accepted now through
November 14th and the donation bins are located at all sub courthouses, Resource Connection, Tim Curry
Criminal Justice Center, Family Law Center, the 1895 Courthouse, Administration Building, Vandergriff
Civil Courts Building, Plaza building and the Public Health building. His office is hosting a Toys for Tots toy
drive on December 9th from 4 to 9 p.m. at South Lake Town Square and would love to receive many toys to
give to those kids in need.

VI. PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND PRESENTATIONS

(Court Order Number: 146199) 1. Employee Recognition (Judge O'Hare)
Motion to Receive and File made by Tim O'Hare and seconded by Manny Ramirez passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146200) 2. Resolution Honoring the 250th Birthday of the United States Marine Corps
(Judge O'Hare)

Motion to Ratify made by Tim O'Hare and seconded by Alisa Simmons passing 5-0-0-0-0

Bishop Kirkland spoke about honoring the Marines.



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

(Court Order Number: 146201) 3. Resolution Recognizing Veterans Day (Judge O'Hare)
Motion to Adopt made by Tim O'Hare and seconded by Alisa Simmons passing 5-0-0-0-0

Bishop Kirkland honor and salutes all veterans and their families.

(Court Order Number: 146202) 4. Resolution Recognizing Tarrant County Adoption Day (Judge O'Hare)
Motion to Approve made by Tim O'Hare and seconded by Manny Ramirez passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146203) 5. Congratulatory Resolution - Sigma Gamma Rho Sorority, Incorporated

103rd Founders Day (Commissioner Miles)

Motion to Approve made by Roderick Miles, Jr. and seconded by Manny Ramirez passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146204) 6. Congratulatory Resolution - Karyn Purvis Institute of Child

Development 20th Anniversary (Commissioner Miles)

Motion to Approve made by Roderick Miles, Jr. and seconded by Manny Ramirez passing 5-0-0-0-0

7. Resolution - Honoring Cresson Volunteer Fire Department Operations Chief Richard Ward for Heroic

Actions on September 1, 2025 (Commissioner Simmons)

Item held.

VII. CONSENT AGENDA

Motion to Approve Consent Agenda as amended made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick
Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

Court recessed at 11:00 a.m. and reconvened at 11:10 a.m.

A. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES

(Court Order Number: 146205) 1. Approval of Minutes of October 14, 2025
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

B. VARIOUS CLAIMS AND ADDENDUM

(Court Order Number: 146206) 1. Approval of Various Claims and Addendum
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

C. Administrator

(Court Order Number: 146340) 1. Consideration of Agreement with Corley Consulting LLC for
Washington D.C. Consulting Services

Motion to Approve made by Alisa Simmons and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

Item was removed from the Consent Agenda.

(Court Order Number: 146207) 2. Consideration to Renew an Interlocal Agreement between Tarrant

County and the City of Fort Worth Concerning Usage of Certain City Facilities for County Related Events
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146208) 3. Consideration to Accept Payment of Disbursed Funds from City of Fort

Worth Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Number 6

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146209) 4. Consideration of the Issuance of Series 2025 Hospital Revenue Bonds
in One or More Series by the Tarrant County Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation for
Ascension Health Alliance in an Amount Not to Exceed $1,585,000,000

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146210) 5. Receive and File Texas General Land Office County Road Bonus Form
with Diversified Production, LLC - Ref. 2.0400 Acres Comprising Wilbarger Street and Carey Street,
Located within the Boundaries of the Whiz-Q West Unit, Covering a Portion of the J.M. Daniels SY., Abst
395, The D Strickland SY., Abst 1376, and the Ashabranner SY., Abst 7, Tarrant County, Texas

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

D. Archives

(Court Order Number: 146211) 1. Consideration to Deaccession Collection Items from the Tarrant County
Archives

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

E. Auditor

(Court Order Number: 146212) 1. Consideration to Adopt an Order Acknowledging the Annual Review of

the Tarrant County Investment Policy

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

(Court Order Number: 146213) 2. Consideration of the Sheriff's Office Fiscal Year 2025 Equitable Sharing

Agreement and Certification

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146214) 3. Receive and File the Quarterly Investment Report Ended September 30,
2025

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146215) 4. Receive and File the Auditor's Report for the Cash and Other

Remittances Control Review, Constable Offices

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146216) 5. Receive and File the Auditor's Report for the Cash and Other

Remittances Control Review, Justice of the Peace Offices

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

F. Budget and Risk Management

(Court Order Number: 146217) 1. Consideration of Fiscal Year 2025 and Fiscal Year 2026 Appropriation
Adjustments

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146218) 2. Consideration to Submit a Grant Application to the Texas Health and
Human Services Commission for the Project for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness Grant to

Support the Mental Health Jail Diversion Center
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146219) 3. Consideration to Submit a Grant Application to the Texas Veterans
Commission's Fund for Veterans' Assistance Department for Fiscal Year 2027 Veteran Treatment Court
Grant Program Funding to Support the Tarrant County Veterans Treatment Court Specialty Court Program

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146220) 4. Consideration to Submit a Grant Application and Resolution to Office of
the Texas Governor's Public Safety Office for Fiscal Year 2026 Bullet-Resistant Components for Law
Enforcement Vehicles Grant Program Funding to Support the Tarrant County Sheriff's Office

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

(Court Order Number: 146221) 5. Consideration to Submit Preliminary Applications to the Texas
Department of Transportation in Response to a Call for Projects for the Off-System Rail Grade Separation
State Fund Program

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146222) 6. Consideration to Accept the Fiscal Year 2026 State Criminal and Justice
Planning Grant Award from the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division, for the Human

Trafficking Unit in the Tarrant County Criminal District Attorney's Office
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146223) 7. Consideration to Accept the Fiscal Year 2026 Violence Against Women
Formula Grant Award from the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division, for the Tarrant County

Criminal District Attorney's Protective Order Unit

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146341) 8. Consideration to Accept Fiscal Year 2026 General Victim Assistance
Direct Services Program Grant Award from the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division, for the
Criminal District Attorney's Office Victim Services Unit

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Matt Krause passing 5-0-0-0-0

Item removed from the Consent Agenda.

(Court Order Number: 146224) 9. Consideration of a Resolution Submitted to the Office of the
Texas Governor's Homeland Security Division to Seek Urban Area Security Initiative Grant

Program Funding for the Emergency Operation Center Technology Enhancement Project

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0
(Court Order Number: 146342) 10. Consideration of Exceptions to Fee Schedule for Court Interpreters
Motion to Approve made by Tim O'Hare and seconded by Matt Krause passing 5-0-0-0-0

Item removed from the Consent Agenda.

(Court Order Number: 146225) 11. Consideration of Risk Management Board Minutes and Recommended
Claims

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

G. Community Development

(Court Order Number: 146226) 1. Bid No. 2025CD-14 Consideration of Construction Contract between
Tarrant County and Tex-Pro Construction for Haltom City, Texas 50th Year Community Development
Block Grant Project

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

2. RFQ-2025ENG-54-50 Consideration of Engineering Contract Between Tarrant County and MJ Thomas
Engineering for the City of River Oaks 51st Year Community Development Block Grant Project

Item held.

3. Consideration of a Community Development Block Grant Subrecipient Agreement between Tarrant

County and SafeHaven of Tarrant County for the Provision of Educational Services to Youth

Item held.

4. Consideration of Program Year 2025 Emergency Solutions Grant Program Subrecipient Agreements

between Tarrant County and Non-Profit Agencies in Tarrant County for Emergency Shelter Operations

Item held.
H. County Clerk

(Court Order Number: 146227) 1. Receive and File the County Clerk's Monthly Report - September 2025
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

L. Dispute Resolution
(Court Order Number: 146228) 1. Consideration to Accept a Monetary Donation from Stories to Solutions
for Tarrant County Dispute Resolution

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

J. District Attorney

(Court Order Number: 146229) 1. Consideration of the Tarrant County Criminal District Attorney’s Fiscal
Year 2025 Annual Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification Report and Authorize its Submission to
the United States Department of Justice and Department of Treasury

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

K. Facilities Management

(Court Order Number: 146230) 1. Consideration of a Professional Services Contract with Baird, Hampton
and Brown for Engineering Services for the Corrections Center Building Heat Boiler Replacement Project

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

(Court Order Number: 146231) 2. Consideration of a Professional Services Contract with Palmetto Air and

Water Balance for Professional Services for the Public Health Building Rebalance Project

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146232) 3. Consideration of a Professional Services Contract with Palmetto Air and
Water Balance for Professional Services for the Public Health Building Replacement of Existing 250 Ton
Chillers Project

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146233) 4. Consideration of Change Order No. 1 to the Blackhawk Construction,
LLC Construction Services Contract for the Corrections Center Gym Doors Replacement Project

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146234) 5. Consideration of Change Order No. 1 to HM & MF LTD. d/b/a

Muckleroy & Falls Construction Services Contract for the Plaza Garage Expansion

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146343) 6. Consideration to Accept a Donation of Labor from Zenith Roofing and
Waterproofing, LLC., for the Installation and Temporary Loan of Exterior Christmas Lights at the J.D.
Johnson Northwest Sub courthouse

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Matt Krause passing 5-0-0-0-0

Item removed from the Consent Agenda.

(Court Order Number: 146235) 7. Consideration of a Building Renovation of the Charles F. Griffin Sub-
Courthouse for County Clerk’s Office

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146236) 8. Consideration of a Property Use Request from the Texas Department of
Family and Protective Services to Use the Sub Courthouse in Arlington Community Room for a Holiday

Leadership Meeting
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146237) 9. Consideration of a Property Use Request from The Rally for Education
to Use the Family Law Center Assembly Room to Hold their 31st Annual Santa Goes to Jail Event

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

(Court Order Number: 146238) 10. Consideration of a Property Use Request from Justice of the Peace,
Precinct 7 to Use the Sub courthouse at Mansfield to Conduct Weddings

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

L. HIV Administration

(Court Order Number: 146239) 1. Consideration of Amendment No. 1 to the Fiscal Year 2025-2026
Health Resources and Services Administration Ryan White Part D Subrecipient Contract with CAN
Community Health, Inc.

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146240) 2. Consideration of Amendment No. 1 to the Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Texas
Department of State Health Services AIDS Drug Assistance Program Contract

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146241) 3. Consideration of Amendment No. 2 to the Fiscal Year 2025-2026
Health Resources and Services Administration Ending the HIV Epidemic: A Plan for America — Ryan White
HIV/AIDS Program Parts A and B Subrecipient Contract with Tarrant County Hospital District

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146242) 4. Consideration of Amendment No. 2 to the Fiscal Year 2025 Health
Resources and Services Administration Ryan White Treatment Extension Act Part C Subrecipient Contract
with CAN Community Health, Inc.

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

M. Housing Assistance Office

(Court Order Number: 146243) 1. Consideration to Submit a Section 8 Management Assessment Program
Certification to the

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development for the Tarrant County Housing Assistance Office
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146244) 2. Consideration of Housing Assistance Payments Contracts and/or
Contract Amendments between Landlords and Tarrant County, d/b/a Tarrant County Housing Assistance
Office

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

N. Human Resources

(Court Order Number: 146245) 1. Consideration of the Annually Determined Contribution Rate to the

Texas County and District Retirement System

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146246) 2. Consideration of an Interlocal Agreement between Tarrant County and
the City of Dallas for Participation in the Cooperative Purchasing Program with Standard Insurance
Company Contract for Voluntary Employee Benefits

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146247) 3. Consideration of the Benefit Program Application between Tarrant

County and Blue Cross Blue Shield of Texas for Benefits Administration Services

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146248) 4. Consideration of an Amendment to the Group Long Term Disability

Policy with Standard Insurance Company

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146344) 5. Consideration of Out-of-Class Pay Extension - Budget

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Matt Krause passing 4-1-0-0-0
Opposed by Alisa Simmons
Item removed from the Consent Agenda.

(Court Order Number: 146249) 6. Consideration of Out-of-Class Pay Extension - Office of Communications

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146250) 7. Consideration of Changes to the Table of Organization - Housing
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146251) 8. Receive and File the Personnel Agenda
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

O. Judicial Courts

(Court Order Number: 146252) 1. Consideration of an Educational Affiliation Agreement between Tarrant
County and the University of North Texas Regarding Social Work Students Participating in the Court
Visitor Program in Probate Court No. 2

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

P.Juvenile Services

(Court Order Number: 146253) 1. Consideration of the Memorandum of Understanding with the Fort
Worth Independent School District for the 2025-2026 School Year at the Lynn W. Ross Juvenile Detention

Center

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146254) 2. Consideration of the Agreement for Data Sharing between Tarrant
County and the Fort Worth Independent School District for the 2025-2026 School Year at the Tarrant

County Juvenile Justice Alternative Education Program

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146255) 3. Consideration of the Agreement for Data Sharing between Tarrant
County and the Fort Worth Independent School District for the 2025-2026 School Year at the Lynn W.

Ross Detention Center

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

Q. Public Health

(Court Order Number: 146256) 1. Consideration of a Participating Provider Agreement with Parkland
Community Health Plan, Inc., and its Affiliates, to Accept the PCHP Benefit Plan for Clinical Health
Care Services Provided at the Tarrant County Public Health Department

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146257) 2. Consideration of Procedures of Collaboration Agreement with the Texas
Department of State Health Services for Continued Participation in the Texas Infertility Prevention Project

to Promote Identification, Treatment and Prevention of Sexually Transmitted Infections

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146258) 3. Consideration of Amendment No. 3 to the Texas Department of State
Health Services Sexually Transmitted Infections/Human Immunodeficiency Virus Prevention Services

Grant Contract

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146259) 4. Consideration of Amendment No. 4 to the Texas Department of State
Health Services Community Preparedness Section/Laboratory Response Network-Public Health Emergency

Preparedness Grant Agreement

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

(Court Order Number: 146260) 5. Consideration of Amendment No. 4 to the Texas Department of State
Health Services Community Preparedness Section/Hazards — Public Health Emergency Preparedness Grant

Agreement

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

R. Purchasing

(Court Order Number: 146345) 1. RFO No. F2026018 - Purchase of SAP SuccessFactors Software
Licenses - GSA#47QSWA18DO00SF - Information Technology - Carahsoft Technology Corp. - Per Unit

Price

Motion to Approve made by Alisa Simmons and seconded by Tim O'Hare passing 5-0-0-0-0

Item removed from the Consent Agenda.

(Court Order Number: 146261) 2. Bid No. F2026016 - Sale of Recycled Paper for 80+ Tons of Sorted
White Ledger, 40+ Tons of Sorted Office Paper, and 40+ Tons of Old Corrugated Cardboard - Facilities

Management

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146262) 3. Bid No. F2025139 - Purchase of Dump Trucks - Precincts 1 and 4
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146263) 4. RFP No. F2025166 - Annual Contract for Court Resources Scheduling Tool -
Criminal Courts

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146264) 5. RFP No. F2025181 - Annual Contract for Translation and

Interpretation Services - Countywide

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146265) 6. RFP No. 2022-215 - Annual Contract for Epitrax Cloud Hosting,
Support, and Professional Services - Public Health - Resolve Tech Solutions, LLC - Exercise Third Option

for Renewal - Same Contract Terms

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146266) 7. Bid No. 2023-022 - Annual Contract for Office Supplies and Other
Miscellaneous Products - Countywide - Various Vendors - Exercise Third Option for Renewal - Same Firm

Fixed Prices and Discount from List Price

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

(Court Order Number: 146267) 8. RFP No. 2023-153 - Annual Contract for ServiceNow Professional
Services - Information Technology - CDW Government LLC - Exercise Second Option for Renewal -

Same Contract Terms

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146268) 9. RFP No. F2024014 - Annual Contract for Professional Investigative
Services of Applicants for Bondsman License - Countywide - Bearden Investigative Agency - Exercise

Second and Final Option for Renewal - Same Contract Terms

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146269) 10. Bid No. F2024142 - Annual Contract for Automotive Equipment and
Installation - Countywide - Various Vendors - Exercise Second and Final Option for Renewal - Same Firm

Fixed Prices

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146270) 11. Bid No. F2024177 - Annual Contract for Dishwashing and Laundry
Chemicals - Countywide

- Various Vendors - Exercise First Option for Renewal - Same Firm Fixed Prices and Discount from List

Price

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146271) 12. RFP No. F2024185 - Annual Contract for School Based Delinquency
Prevention - Juvenile Services - Lena Pope Home, Inc. - Exercise First Option for Renewal - Same Contract

Terms

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146272) 13. Bid No. F2025015 - Annual Contract for Various Concrete Services -
Countywide - Various Vendors - Exercise First Option for Renewal - Same Firm Fixed Prices and Hourly
Rates

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146273) 14. RFQ No. F2025021 - Annual Contract for Engineering and Planning
Services - Transportation Services - Various Vendors - Exercise First Option for Renewal - Same Contract
Terms

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

(Court Order Number: 146274) 15. Bid No. F2025044 - Annual Contract for Wrecker Service -
Countywide - Various Vendors - Exercise First Option for Renewal - Same Firm Fixed Prices and Hourly
Rates

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146275) 16. RFQ No. F2025045 - Annual Contract for Light and Medium-Duty
Non-Consent Towing Services - Sheriff ’s Office - Various Vendors - Exercise First Option for Renewal

- Same Contract Terms

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146276) 17. RFQ No. F2025046 - Annual Contract for Heavy-Duty Non-Consent
Towing Services - Sheriff ’s Office - Various Vendors - Exercise First Option for Renewal - Same Contract

Terms

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146277) 18. Bid No. F2025082 - Annual Contract for Transportation of Human
Remains - Medical Examiner’s Office - Fort Worth Funerals and Cremations - Exercise First Option for

Renewal - Same Firm Fixed Prices

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146278) 19. Acceptance of Payment Bond - BuyBoard Contract #780-25 - General
Disaster Recovery and Restoration Services - Facilities Management - Belfor USA Group, Inc. d/b/a
BELFOR Property Restoration

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146279) 20. Bid No. F2024168 - Annual Contract for Preventative Maintenance and

Repair of Automatic Sliding Gate Operators - Precinct 1 Maintenance Facility - Dallas Automatic Gate, Inc.

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146280) 21. Bid No. F2025103 - Annual Contract for Preventative Maintenance and
Repair of Standby Generator Equipment - Facilities Management - Texas Industrial Infrastructure Services,
LLC

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146281) 22. Bid No. F2025184 - Annual Contract for Mechanical and Plumbing

Services - Countywide - Enviromatic Systems, Inc.

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

(Court Order Number: 146282) 23. Kirby-Smith Machinery, Inc. - Wirtgen/Hamm/Vogel Equipment,
Services and Repairs - Countywide

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146283) 24. Nemo-Q, Inc. - Nemo-Q Branded Software, Products, and Service -
Countywide

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146284) 25. eClinicalWorks, LLC - Cloud and Database Access and Population Health
Management Tool

- Public Health
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146285) 26. Hart InterCivic, Inc. - Hart InterCivic Verity Voting System and
Associated Software, Hardware, Accessories, Consumables, Maintenance, and Repair - Elections

Administration

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146286) 27. Southwest Solutions Group - Distribution, Maintenance, Repair and

Service of SpaceSaver Equipment - Countywide

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146287) 28. Wireless Data Systems, Inc. - Elections Inventory Management System

Software - Elections Administration

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146346) 29. Consideration of Amendment No. 1 - RFP No. F2024145 - Annual
Contract for Oblique and Orthophotography Aerial Imagery Services - Information Technology - Pictometry
International Corp. d/b/a EagleView

Motion to Approve made by Alisa Simmons and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 3-2-0-0-0
Opposed by Matt Krause, Tim O'Hare

Item was removed from the Consent Agenda.

Joe Palmer spoke against the annual contract for Oblique and Orthophotography Aerial Imagery Services.

(Court Order Number: 146288) 30. Consideration of Cooperative for Cloud Platform and Hosting Services
- #DIR-CPO-5172 - Information Technology - Amazon Web Services, Inc.

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

(Court Order Number: 146289) 31. Consideration of Cooperative for Digital Media Evidence
Collections Platform - BuyBoard #743-24 - District Attorney’s Office - Axon Enterprises, Inc. - Per

Discount from List Price

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146290) 32. Consideration of Cooperative for Facility Maintenance Equipment
and Services - BuyBoard #757-24 - Facilities Management - Various Vendors - Per Hourly Rates and

Discount from List Price

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146291) 33. Consideration of Cooperative for General Disaster Recovery and
Restoration Services - BuyBoard #780-25 - Facilities Management - Various Vendors - Per Contract Terms

and Discount from List Price

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146292) 34. Consideration of Cooperative for GrayKey Software Subscription -
#DIR-CPO-5687 - District Attorney’s Office - Carahsoft Technology Corporation

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146293) 35. Consideration of Cooperative for HVAC Equipment, Supplies, and
Installation - BuyBoard #720-23 - Facilities Management - Various Vendors - Per Hourly Rates and

Discount from List Price

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146294) 36. Consideration of Cooperative for Information Technology Solutions,
Products and Services - OMNIA Partners #R2024056-02 - Countywide - Various Vendors - Discount from
List Price and Hourly Rates

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146295) 37. Consideration of Cooperative for Microsoft Windows 10 Extended Security
Updates Program

- #DIR-CPO-5237 - Information Technology - SHI Government Solutions, Inc.
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146296) 38. Consideration of Cooperative for Purchase of Everbridge Subscription
Services - GSA #47QTCA24D0083 - Public Health - Everbridge, Inc.

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

(Court Order Number: 146297) 39. Consideration of Cooperative for Vaccines and the Full Range of
Goods and Services - Minnesota Multistate Contracting Alliance for Pharmacy - Public Health

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146298) 40. Consideration for Property Coverage Insurance - Budget and Risk
Management - Texas Association of Counties Risk Management Pool

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146299) 41. Consideration of Request for Fuel Cards - Precinct 2
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146300) 42. Consideration of Request for Fleet Fuel Cards - Sheriff’s Office
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146301) 43. Authorization to Submit Procurement Card Account Application Forms
to JPMorgan Chase Bank for Tarrant County Procurement Cards - Sheriff's Office

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146302) 44. Authorization to Submit Procurement Card Account Application Form
to JPMorgan Chase Bank for Tarrant County Procurement Card - Texas A&M AgriLife Extension

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146303) 45. Consideration of Interlocal Agreement Between Tarrant County and

Brazos River Authority for Cooperative Purchasing of Goods and Services

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146347) 46. Consideration of Tarrant County Purchasing Policies and Procedures
Manual Revisions - Amendment of Section 10
Motion to Approve made by Tim O'Hare and seconded by Matt Krause passing 5-0-0-0-0

Item removed from the Consent Agenda.

Joe Palmer spoke against the purchasing policies and procedures manual revisions.

S. Resource Connection

(Court Order Number: 146304) 1. Consideration of a Partner Location Agreement between Tarrant County,
d/b/a Tarrant County Resource Connection Aquatic Center and Tivity Health Services, LLC to Provide

Access to Tivity's SilverSneakers Program to Eligible Members of the Aquatic Center

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

(Court Order Number: 146305) 2. Consideration of a Proposal Submitted to the Tarrant County Workforce
Development Board, d/b/a Workforce Solutions of Tarrant County Related to the Request for Proposals

Issued for Resource Connection Workforce Center Office Space Lease

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146306) 3. Consideration of Amendment No. 8 to the Lease Agreement Between
Tarrant County and the Texas Workforce Commission-Vocational Rehabilitation Services for Office Space

Located at the Resource Connection

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

T. Sheriff

(Court Order Number: 146307) 1. Consideration of Memorandum of Understanding between Tarrant County
and the National Cutting Horse Association for the Preparation and Implementation of Plans to Prevent Human

Trafficking at Events
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146308) 2. Consideration of Fiscal Year 2026 Agency Interlocal Assistance
Agreements with the City of Arlington, City of Euless, City of Fort Worth, City of Grapevine, City of
Haltom City, City of Hurst, City of Weatherford, City of White Settlement, Parker County and Wise

County for Participation in the Tarrant Regional Auto Crimes Task Force

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

U. Tax Assessor-Collector

(Court Order Number: 146309) 1. Consideration of the Tarrant County Tax Roll for Tax Year 2025
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146310) 2. Consideration of the Tarrant County Hospital District Tax Roll for Tax Year
2025

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146311) 3. Consideration of webDEALER License Agreement between Tarrant
County, d/b/a Tarrant County Tax Assessor-Collector and Sprout Automotive LLC, d/b/a Carvana CDJR
Fiat of Park Cities to Electronically Process Motor Vehicle Titles and Registrations

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146312) 4. Consideration of Tax Office Deputizations
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

V. Transportation

(Court Order Number: 146313) 1. Request for Public Hearing - Tuesday, December 16, 2025, 10:00 A.M.
- To Consider Authorizing Placement of a Stop Sign on Mustang Wells Drive at the Intersection with Ben
Day Murrin Road - Precinct 2

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146314) 2. Request for Public Hearing - Tuesday, December 16, 2025, 10:00 A.M. -
To Consider Establishing a Speed Limit of 35 MPH on Eagle Mountain Circle - Precinct 4

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146315) 3. Consideration to Authorize the Installation of Multiple Stop Signs
within the Newark Ranch Subdivision - Precinct 4- 11:00 AM

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146316) 4. Consideration of a Professional Services Agreement with GFT
Infrastructure, Inc. Related to the Wichita Street Widening Project

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146317) 5. Consideration to Appoint Transportation Services as the Licensing
Designee for the On-Site Sewage Facilities in Unincorporated Tarrant County and Adopt a Change to the
Current Development Rules Related to the On-Site Sewage Facility Program

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146318) 6. Consideration of an Interlocal Agreement between Tarrant County and
the City of Arlington Related to the Arlington Access Bridge Project - 2021 Transportation Bond Program

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146319) 7. Consideration of First Amendment to the Interlocal Agreement
between Tarrant County and the City of Fort Worth to Continue Participation in the City's Drop-Off

Station Voucher Program for Residential Waste Disposal and Recycling

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146320) 8. Consideration of Second Amendment to the Interlocal Agreement
between Tarrant County and the City of Fort Worth to Continue Participation in the City's Environmental
Collection Center Household Hazardous Waste Program

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

(Court Order Number: 146321) 9. Consideration of Amendment No. 3 to the Interlocal Agreement
between Tarrant County and the City of Forest Hill Related to the Wichita Street Widening Project - 2021

Transportation Bond Program

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146322) 10. Consideration of Final Plat and Construction Bond - Prairie Hill
Addition, Phase 2 - Precinct 2

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146323) 11. Receive and File - City of Fort Worth Annexation Ordinance No.
27815-06-2025 (Case No. AX-23-011) - Precincts 2 and 4

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146324) 12. Receive and File - City of Fort Worth Annexation Ordinance No.
27816-06-2025 (Case No. AX-24-017) - Precincts 2 and 4

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146325) 13. Receive and File - City of Fort Worth Annexation Ordinance No.
27817-06-2025 (Case No. AX-24-016) - Precinct 4

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146326) 14. Receive and File Meeting Attendance Roster for the Surface
Transportation Technical Committee of the North Central Texas Council of Governments Regional
Transportation Council - September 2024 through September 2025

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

W. Commissioner Precinct 1
(Court Order Number: 146327) 1. Consideration of a Grant Agreement between Tarrant County and
Tarrant County College District to Provide Support Services to Tarrant County Residents

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146328) 2. Consideration of a Grant Agreement between Tarrant County and
COACT to Provide Support Services to Tarrant County Residents

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

(Court Order Number: 146329) 3. Consideration to Assist the City of Forest Hill with the Reconstruction of
Brambleton Place, Bowling Green Street, Horton Road, and Twin Oaks Drive to Apply Two Inches of Type D
Asphalt and Two Inches of Type B Asphalt

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146330) 4. Consideration to Assist the City of Fort Worth with the Reconstruction
of Four Parking Lots Located at the Fort Worth Water Department Field Operations to Apply Two Inches of
Type D Asphalt and Three Inches of Type B Asphalt

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146331) 5. Consideration to Assist the City of Fort Worth with the Reconstruction
of Shelby Road, Camelot Road and Clark Road to Apply Two Inches of Type D Asphalt and Three Inches of
Type B Asphalt

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

X. Commissioner Precinct 3
(Court Order Number: 146332) 1. Consideration of Agreements with Various Organizations for the
Provision of Transportation Services to the Residents of Tarrant County, Precinct 3

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146333) 2. Consideration to Assist the City of Keller with the Rehabilitation and
Resurfacing of Cheyenne Trail from Cherokee Trail to Navajo Drive, North Pearson Drive from Summer
Lane to North City Limits, Willis Lane from Bursey Road to North Tarrant Parkway, Roanoke Road from
Knox Road to North City Limits, Judge Bland Road from Florance Road to End of Pavement, Lucian
Road from Marvin Road to End of Pavement, Oak Hill Road from Keller Smithfield to End of Pavement,
Oak Trail from Roanoke Road to End of Pavement

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

Y. Commissioner Precinct 4
(Court Order Number: 146334) 1. Consideration of a Resolution in Support of the Texas Department of
Transportation Constructing State Highway Spur 170 from Intermodal Parkway to State Highway 170
Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146335) 2. Consideration to Assist the City of Fort Worth with the Full Depth
Reclamation and Asphalt Overlay of the Will Rogers Memorial Center East Parking Lot

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

(Court Order Number: 146336) 3. Consideration to Assist the City of Haltom City with the
Reconstruction and Asphalt Overlay of Old Denton Road

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146337) 4. Consideration to Assist the City of River Oaks with the Reconstruction
and Asphalt Overlay of Castleberry Cut-off Road

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146338) 5. Consideration to Assist the Tarrant Regional Water District with the
Chip Seal of the Northside Parking Lot

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146339) 6. Consideration to Assist the City of Lakeside with the Asphalt Overlay
of the Brooks Baker Avenue approach at Watercress Drive, Asphalt Overlay of Wren Haven Drive,
Shoulder-widening of Silver Creek Road and various other roadways, Tiger Mowing Rankin Road and the

Wastewater Treatment Plant, and the Street Sweeping of various City Roadways

Motion to Approve made by Manny Ramirez and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0
VIII. PUBLIC HEARINGS
IX. REPORTS AND BUSINESS

A. Administrator

(Court Order Number: 146348) 1. Consideration of Out-of-State Travel Requests
Motion to Approve made by Matt Krause and seconded by Manny Ramirez passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146349) 2. Consideration of a Resolution Casting Votes for the Election of

Tarrant Appraisal District Board of Directors

Motion To Give all of Tarrant County votes for the Election of Tarrant Appraisal District Board of
Directors to Mike Alfred made by Matt Krause and seconded by Manny Ramirez passing 3-1-1-0-0
Opposed by Alisa Simmons, Abstain by Roderick Miles, Jr.

B. Elections Administration
(Court Order Number: 146350) 1. Consideration to Canvass the Results of the General Constitutional
Amendment Election Held on November 4, 2025
Motion to Approve made by Matt Krause and seconded by Manny Ramirez passing 5-0-0-0-0
Amie Super thanked the court for the opportunity to serve as presiding judge for the past election and would

be happy to answer any questions about the ballot board.
Katherine Cano wished to have her comment read regarding the canvass results.



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

(Court Order Number: 146351) 2. Consideration to Canvass the Results of the Senate District 9
Special Election Held on November 4, 2025

Motion to Approve made by Matt Krause and seconded by Manny Ramirez passing 5-0-0-0-0

Bishop Kirkland spoke about voters and voting locations.

C. Facilities Management

(Court Order Number: 146352) 1. Consideration of a Property Use and Fee Waiver Request from the
Tarrant County Historical Commission to Conduct Guided Public Tours of the 1895 Courthouse During the
Parade of Lights

Motion to Approve made by Matt Krause and seconded by Manny Ramirez passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146353) 2. Consideration of a Property Use and Fee Waiver Request from Tarrant
County Precinct One Commissioners Staff and Volunteers to Use the Plaza Building Loading Bay to
Decorate their Float for the GM Parade of Lights

Motion to Approve made by Tim O'Hare and seconded by Alisa Simmons passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146354) 3. Consideration of a Property Use and Fee Waiver Request from Justice of
the Peace, Precinct 2 to Use the Sub courthouse in Arlington to Conduct a Landlord/Tenant Legislative
Update Workshop

Motion to Approve made by Alisa Simmons and seconded by Roderick Miles, Jr. passing 5-0-0-0-0

D. Fire Marshal
(Court Order Number: 146355) 1. Consideration to Update the Tarrant County Fire Code for
Unincorporated Areas of Tarrant County - 2021 International Fire Code

Motion to Approve made by Matt Krause and seconded by Manny Ramirez passing 5-0-0-0-0

E. Human Resources

(Court Order Number: 146356) 1. Consideration of Changes to the Table of Organization - Community
Development

Motion to Approve made by Tim O'Hare and seconded by Matt Krause passing 5-0-0-0-0

F. Purchasing
(Court Order Number: 146357) 1. RFP No. F2025163 - Annual Contract with UpGuard, Inc. for
Cybersecurity Services - Information Technology - Per Contract Terms

Motion to Approve made by Tim O'Hare and seconded by Alisa Simmons passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

(Court Order Number: 146362) 2. Bid No. F2025173 - Annual Contract for Disposable Paper and Plastic
Products - Countywide

- Various Vendors - Per Unit Price and Discount from List Price

Motion to Approve made by Tim O'Hare and seconded by Alisa Simmons passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146363) 3. RFP No. F2025178 - Annual Contract for Rapid DNA Instrument and

Maintenance - Medical Examiner’s Office - Life Technologies Corporation - Per Contract Terms

Motion to Approve made by Tim O'Hare and seconded by Alisa Simmons passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146364) 4. Bid No. F2025208 - Off-System Bridge Repairs - Transportation

Services - Garret Shields Infrastructure, LLC

Motion to Approve made by Tim O'Hare and seconded by Alisa Simmons passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146365) 5. Bid No. F2026004 - Annual Contract for Irrigation Supplies, Services,

and Repairs - Facilities Management - Various Vendors - Per Hourly Rates

Motion to Approve made by Tim O'Hare and seconded by Alisa Simmons passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146366) 6. Bid No. F2026005 - Annual Contract for Locksmith Services and
Supplies - Facilities Management - Various Vendors - Per Unit Price, Hourly Rates, and Markup for Parts

Motion to Approve made by Tim O'Hare and seconded by Alisa Simmons passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146367) 7. Bid No. F2026008 - Annual Contract for Arbor and Landscape Supplies

and Services - Facilities Management - Various Vendors - Per Hourly Rates and Markup for Parts

Motion to Approve made by Tim O'Hare and seconded by Alisa Simmons passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146368) 8. RFP No. F2026009 - Annual Contract for Hair Testing Supplies and
Laboratory Confirmation Testing Services - Community Supervision and Corrections Department - Various

Vendors - Per Contract Terms

Motion to Approve made by Tim O'Hare and seconded by Alisa Simmons passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146358) 9. Permission to Take Bids/RFPs

Motion to Approve Permission to take bids/RFPs on items A through V, excluding T and U made by
Manny Ramirez and seconded by Matt Krause passing 5-0-0-0-0

G. Tax Assessor-Collector

(Court Order Number: 146359) 1. Consideration of Property Tax Waivers of Penalty and Interest
Motion to Approve made by Matt Krause and seconded by Manny Ramirez passing 5-0-0-0-0



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

H. County Judge
(Court Order Number: 146360) 1. Consideration of a Resolution Approving Assignment of Private Activity
Bond Authority to Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs; and Containing Other Provisions
Relating to the Subject

Motion to Approve made by Tim O'Hare and seconded by Matt Krause passing 5-0-0-0-0
X. APPOINTMENTS TO VARIOUS BOARDS

(Court Order Number: 146369) 1. Action Concerning Appointments to Various Boards, Commissions,
Committees, or Tax Increment Finance District Boards

Motion to Approve Appointments of Manny Ramirez to the TIF#3 Downtown Fort Worth, TIF#8
Downtown Lancaster, TIF#9, and Tracey Knight to TIF#15 Stockyards made by Manny Ramirez and
seconded by Matt Krause passing 5-0-0-0-0

(Court Order Number: 146370) 1. Action Concerning Appointments to Various Boards, Commissions,
Committees, or Tax Increment Finance District Boards

Motion to Approve Appointments of Jamal Williams to TIF#12 and Patrick Winfield to TIF#13 made by
Roderick Miles, Jr. and seconded by Matt Krause passing 5-0-0-0-0

XI. APPROVAL OF BONDS AND CERTIFICATES OF SELF-INSURANCE
(Court Order Number: 146361) 1. Consideration of a Certificate of Self-Insurance for Nicholas F. Beggs,
Public Probate Administrator, Probate Court No. 2

Motion to Approve made by Tim O'Hare and seconded by Manny Ramirez passing 5-0-0-0-0

XII. BRIEFING

1. Operational Impact of Tarrant County Redistricting

Bishop Kirkland spoke about redistricting.

XIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS
1. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Katherine Godby spoke about depraved indifference.

Harriet Harral invited all to attend people's commissioners court on November 18th at Blanc cowork and studio
space.

Elizabeth Miller spoke about people in Tarrant County with various concerns.

Karla Palomares spoke about her disappointment with the court’s decision to close over 100 polling locations.
Amie Super spoke about data and polling sites.

Billy Wilson spoke about oppression.

Joe Palmer spoke about the Republican Liberty Caucus beliefs and shared a story about a friend.



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

Vicky Goodwin asked the Court to re-evaluate and expand the number of polling locations.
Bishop Kirkland spoke about appointments, boards and Anthony Johnson's jail death and his family.
Nan Terry spoke about Anthony Johnson's jail death and commissioners court agenda items.

XIV.ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMENTS

Commissioners Court recessed into Closed Session at 12:35 p.m.

XV.CLOSED MEETING
A. Advice of Counsel

B. Pending or Contemplated Litigation

1. Daryl Grant - CLAIM

2. Freddy Guitierrez - CLAIM

3. Laureano Tamez - CLAIM

4. Ken-Do Contracting, LP v. Tarrant County, Texas, No. 096-371135-25

C. Real Estate Matters
D. Contract Deliberations

E. Personnel Matters

1. Position No. 20000275
2. Position No. 20008036

F. Security and Cybersecurity Related Issues

1. Courthouse Personnel Security Discussion

G. Economic Development Prospects

XVI. COMMISSIONERS COURT RECONVENED

Commissioners Court reconvened at 1:58 p.m.
Honorable Tim O'Hare, County Judge, Presiding
Roderick Miles Jr, Commissioner Precinct 1, Present
Alisa Simmons, Commissioner Precinct 2, Present
Matt Krause, Commissioner Precinct 3, Absent
Manny Ramirez, Commissioner Precinct 4, Absent



Tuesday, November 11, 2025 Volume: 141

XVII. ADJOURNMENT

Commissioners Court was adjourned at 1:58 p.m.

APPROVED BY:

Tim O'Hare, County Judge

SUBMITTED BY: Mary Louise Nicholson, County Clerk

BY:

April Hanks, Deputy



TARRANT COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS COURT COMMUNICATION

Court Date: December 9, 2025 Court Order #: Page: | of 1
Department: Auditor Prepared By: Kimberly Buchanan Approved By: Kimberly Buchanan
SUBJECT:

Consideration of Various Claims and Addendum

*** CONSENT AGENDA **%*

See Attachment for Additional Information



TARRANT COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS COURT COMMUNICATION

Court Date: December 9, 2025 Court Order #: Page: | of 1

. Prepared By: Maegan South, Assistant ~ Approved By: Maegan South, Assistant
Department: Administrator .. .
County Administrator County Administrator

SUBJECT:

Consideration of the Issuance of Series 2026 Hospital Revenue Bonds in One or More Series by the Tarrant County
Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation for Methodist Hospitals of Dallas d/b/a Methodist Health System in
an Amount not to Exceed $220,000,000

*** CONSENT AGENDA ***

COMMISSIONERS COURT ACTION REQUESTED

It is requested that the Commissioners Court approve the issuance of Series 2026 Hospital Revenue Bonds by the Tarrant
County Cultural Education Facilities Finance Coproration (TCCEFFC) for Methodist Hospitals of Dallas d/b/a Methodist
Health System in an amount not to exceeed $220,000,000.00.

BACKGROUND

The Tarrant County Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation is a Texas non-profit corporation created under the
Texas Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation Act. Under the Cultural Facilities Act, not only can bonds be issued
for cultural facilities including museums, charter schools and retirement facilities, but can also be used for health facilities. On
March 11, 2003, the Commissioners Court, through Court Order #89712, approved the formal creation of the TCCEFFC.

The TCCEFFC Board of Directors adopted a resolution on October 28, 2025 approving the issuance of tax-exempt revenue
refunding bonds Series 2026 for Methodist Hospitals of Dallas d/b/a Methodist Health System in an amount not to exceed
$220,000,000.00. The proceeds of the Series 2026 Bonds will be used to finance or refinance the acquistion, development,
construction, reconstruction, renovation, rehabilitation, and/or equipping of health facilities of the System in the State of Texas
(the "Series 2026 Project") and pay certain costs of issuance of the Series 2026 Bonds. Additional details of the use of funds at
the hospital facilities are set forth in Exhibit "A" to the attached Notice of Intent to Issue Bonds.

The Notice of Intent to Issue Bonds was filed with the Tarrant County Clerks Office on November 14, 2025. The application
fee has been paid to Tarrant County. A public hearing was held on October 31, 2025. The pubic hearing notice and affidavits of
publication have been provided.



In order for the bonds to qualify as tax exempt under Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, certain
federal and state tax law requirements must be met, including having a governmental entity in which the financed facilities are
located approve the issuance of such bonds for the benefit of the borrower.

The District Attorney’s Office has reviewed as to form

FISCAL IMPACT

Tarrant County receives a $10,000.00 application fee which is refundable by Tarrant County at any time prior to
Commissioners Court approving the issuance of the Bonds. The TCCEFFC will issue the bonds. Tarrant County is not liable
for the repayment of the principal or interest associated with these bonds. The bonds expressly provide that neither the assets
nor credit of the County have been pledged to support issuance of these bonds. Tarrant County is approving the bonds solely
for the purpose of satisfying Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Attachments

TCCEFFC Certificate for Resolution.pdf
Notice of Intent & Exhibit.pdf
Application for Issuance of Revenue Bonds TCCEFFC.pdf

Collin County Certificate; Affidavit of Publication; Notice of Public Hearing.pdf

Certificate of Resolution.pdf
General Certificate of TC.pdf
5.1 Collin County Order (signed).pdf



https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/TCCEFFC_Certificate_for_Resolution.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/TCCEFFC_Certificate_for_Resolution.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/TCCEFFC_Certificate_for_Resolution.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/Notice_of_Intent___Exhibit.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/Notice_of_Intent___Exhibit.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/Notice_of_Intent___Exhibit.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/Application_for_Issuance_of_Revenue_Bonds_TCCEFFC.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/Application_for_Issuance_of_Revenue_Bonds_TCCEFFC.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/Application_for_Issuance_of_Revenue_Bonds_TCCEFFC.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/Collin_County_Certificate__Affidavit_of_Publication__Notice_of_Public_Hearing.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/Collin_County_Certificate__Affidavit_of_Publication__Notice_of_Public_Hearing.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/Collin_County_Certificate__Affidavit_of_Publication__Notice_of_Public_Hearing.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/Certificate_of_Resolution.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/Certificate_of_Resolution.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/Certificate_of_Resolution.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/General_Certificate_of_TC.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/General_Certificate_of_TC.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/General_Certificate_of_TC.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/5.1_Collin_County_Order__signed_.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/5.1_Collin_County_Order__signed_.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691dfec79b2f6c0038f93460/5.1_Collin_County_Order__signed_.pdf

CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION
THE STATE OF TEXAS  §
§
COUNTY OF TARRANT §

The undersigned representative of the Tarrant County Cultural Education Facilities

Finance Corporation (the “Issuer”) hereby certifies as follows:

1. The Board of Directors of the Issuer convened in a regular meeting on the 28th
day of October, 2025 at Fort Worth, Texas, and the roll was called of the duly constituted

members of said Board of Directors, to-wit:

Steven R. Purvis, President Robert M. Lansford, Secretary
Tobi L. Jackson Alan Barron

Shelli A. Harveson Kevin Stadler

Vacant

and all of said persons were present except for [Jackson], thus constituting a quorum.
Whereupon, among other business, the written resolution (the “Resolution™) bearing the caption

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TARRANT COUNTY
CULTURAL EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE CORPORATION
ACCEPTING AN APPLICATION REQUESTING THE ISSUANCE OF ONE
OR MORE SERIES OF HOSPITAL REVENUE BONDS; APPROVING,
RATIFYING AND CONFIRMING THE TAKING OF CERTAIN
PRELIMINARY ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF
SUCH HOSPITAL REVENUE BONDS, INCLUDING APPOINTMENT OF A
FINANCING TEAM; AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF ONE OR MORE
SERIES OF HOSPITAL REVENUE BONDS; APPROVING AND
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF FINANCING DOCUMENTS IN
CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF BONDS; CONFIRMING AND
RATIFYING ACTIONS TAKEN IN THE PREPARATION OF PRELIMINARY
OFFICIAL STATEMENTS AND OFFICIAL STATEMENTS; AUTHORIZING
THE USE AND DISTRIBUTION OF PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL
STATEMENTS AND FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENTS; RESOLVING
OTHER MATTERS PERTAINING TO THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE
BONDS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

was duly introduced for the consideration of said Board and read in full. It was then duly moved
and seconded that said Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said motion, carrying

with it the adoption of said Resolution, prevailed and carried by the following vote:

AYES: 5]

NOES: ]




ABSTENTION: [

2, A full copy of the Resolution is attached to this Certificate; the original of the
Resolution is on file in the official records of the Governing Body; and the Resolution has not
been amended and is in full force and effect.

3. The persons attending the meeting and acting as officers and members of the
Governing Body are the duly chosen, qualified, and acting officers and members of said
Governing Body as indicated therein; that each of the officers and members of said Governing
Body was duly and sufficiently notified officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place
and purpose of the aforesaid meeting, and that said Resolution would be introduced and
considered for adoption at said meeting.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]




WITNESS MY HAND AND THE OFFICIAL SEAL OF THE ISSUER, THIS 28th
DAY OF OCTOBER, 2025.

Tarrant County Cultural
Education Facilities Finance Corporation

(SEAL)

Signature Page to Certificate of Resolution



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TARRANT COUNTY
CULTURAL EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE CORPORATION
ACCEPTING AN APPLICATION REQUESTING THE ISSUANCE OF ONE
OR MORE SERIES OF HOSPITAL REVENUE BONDS; APPROVING,
RATIFYING AND CONFIRMING THE TAKING OF CERTAIN
PRELIMINARY ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF
SUCH HOSPITAL REVENUE BONDS, INCLUDING APPOINTMENT OF A
FINANCING TEAM; AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF ONE OR MORE
SERIES OF HOSPITAL REVENUE BONDS; APPROVING AND
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF FINANCING DOCUMENTS IN
CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF BONDS; CONFIRMING AND
RATIFYING ACTIONS TAKEN IN THE PREPARATION OF PRELIMINARY
OFFICIAL STATEMENTS AND OFFICIAL STATEMENTS; AUTHORIZING
THE USE AND DISTRIBUTION OF PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL
STATEMENTS AND FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENTS; RESOLVING
OTHER MATTERS PERTAINING TO THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE
BONDS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, by resolution the Commissioners Court (the “Governing Body™) of Tarrant
County, Texas (the “Sponsoring Entity”), authorized and approved the creation of the Tarrant
County Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation (the “Issuer”), a Texas nonprofit
corporation, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 337 of the Texas Local Government Code, as
amended (the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes and empowers the Issuer to issue its revenue bonds on
behalf of the Sponsoring Entity, to finance and refinance the cost of “health facilities” (as
defined in Chapter 221, Texas Health and Safety Code, as amended (the “Health Act™); and

WHEREAS, Methodist Hospitals of Dallas d/b/a Methodist Health System, a Texas
nonprofit corporation (the “Hospital”), has filed with the Issuer an Application for Financial
Participation (the “Application™) and has requested the Issuer to approve the issuance of one or
more series of hospital revenue bonds, taxable and tax-exempt, either or both, for benefit of the
Hospital, in an aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $220,000,000 (collectively, the
“Hospital Revenue Bonds™), the proceeds of which will be loaned to the Hospital to provide
funds to (i) finance or refinance the purchase, development, construction, recomstruction,
renovation, rehabilitation and/or equipping of health facilities of the Hospital (the “Series 2026
Project”) and (ii) pay the costs of issuance of the Hospital Revenue Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Issuer has determined, based upon representations of the Hospital, that
the issuance of the Hospital Revenue Bonds for such purposes will be in furtherance of the
public purposes of the Act and the Health Act and will assist in providing, expanding and
improving health facilities which will improve the adequacy, cost and accessibility of health
care, research and education within the State; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Issuer (the “Board”) now deems it necessary
and desirable to (i) accept the Application and (ii) participate in financing the Project; and




WHEREAS, the Hospital now desires the Issuer to issue Hospital Revenue Bonds (as
defined below, the “Series 2026 Bonds™) for the purpose of providing funds to (i) finance or
refinance the Series 2026 Project, and (ii) pay the costs of issuing the Series 2026 Bonds; and

WHEREAS, Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
“Code™), requires that the Hospital Revenue Bonds and the Project be approved by the
“applicable elected representative” (the “AER™) of each county in which any portion of the
proceeds of tax-exempt bonds will be spent, after a public hearing following reasonable public
notice thereof: and

WHEREAS, the Board has previously approved and authorized that a notice of public
hearing relating to issuance of one or more series of Hospital Revenue Bonds, in an aggregate
principal amount of not to exceed $220,000,000, for the benefit of the Hospital be and has been
published in the Dallas Morning News in accordance with the requirements of the Code, and that
the required public hearing with respect to the Hospital Revenue Bonds and the Series 2026
Project to be financed with the proceeds thereof will be held on October 31, 2025, and will be
conducted by Shelby Harden, as hearing officer, and such publication of notice of public hearing
and the conduct of such hearing by Shelby Harden, as hearing officer, has been approved and
ratified and is further hereby ratified and confirmed; and

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Series 2026 Bonds will be spent within Collin County
and the AER is the County Judge or the Commissioners Court of the Sponsoring Entity or the
Governing Body thereof, and

WHEREAS, the Commissioners Court for Collin County, acting 1n its capacity as AER,
will be requested to grant its approval with respect to the Series 2026 Bonds and the Series 2026
Project, as required by the Code; and

WHEREAS, the Board now deems it necessary and desirable to authorize and direct the
officers of the Issuer to transmit to the Governing Body, in accordance with the provisions of
Section 221.062 of the Health Act, a notice of intent (the “Notice of Intent™) relating to the
Series 2026 Bonds, in the substantially final form presented at this meeting, with such changes as
may be approved by Bond Counsel and the President of this Board; and

WHEREAS, the Board understands that the underwriters named in paragraph 8 below
(the “Underwriters”) intend to distribute preliminary official statements and official statements in
connection with the offering and sale of the Series 2026 Bonds; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the preparation of such preliminary official statements
and official statements (collectively, the “Official Statement™), the Issuer has furnished to the
Underwriters certain information concerning the Issuer set forth in the official statements under
the captions “Introductory Statement,” “The Issuer” and “Litigation-The Issuer,” and the Board
now desires to authorize the use of such information in such Official Statements; and

WHEREAS, for purposes of providing funds required to finance and refinance the cost of
the Series 2026 Project, the Issuer now desires to (a) authorize the issuance of the Series 2026
Bonds in a maximum aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $220,000,000, pursuant to the
terms and provisions of one or more trust indentures; (b) authorize the sale of the Series 2026

2.



Bonds to the Underwriters pursuant to one or more contracts of purchase and letters of
representation and indemnification with respect to the Series 2026 Bonds and to approve the
execution and delivery of such contracts of purchase and letters of representations; (¢) authorize
the preparation, distribution and execution of one or more preliminary official statements and
official statements, as applicable, with respect to the Series 2026 Bonds; (d) provide for the
payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2026 Bonds with
revenues derived from the loan of proceeds of the sale of the Series 2026 Bonds pursuant to the
terms and provisions of one or more loan agreements; and (e) take and authorize certain other
actions in connection with the foregoing; and

WHEREAS, the Board has been presented with and examined proposed forms of a bond
trust indenture, a loan agreement, a contract of purchase and a letter of representation and
indemnification, and the Board finds that the form and substance of such documents presented
herewith are satisfactory and the recitals and findings contained therein are true, correct and
complete, and hereby adopts and incorporates by reference such recitals and findings as if set
forth in full in this Resolution, and finds that it is in the best interest of the public and the Issuer
and assists in carrying out the public purpose of the Issuer and of the Act and the Health Act to
authorize the execution and delivery of such documents; and

WHEREAS, this Board desires to approve the appointment of certain professionals (the
“Financing Team”) to accomplish the issuance, sale and marketing of the Series 2026 Bonds:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
TARRANT COUNTY CULTURAL EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE CORPORATION
THAT:

1. Findings and Determinations. All of the above recitals are found and determined
to be true and correct and are incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if repeated in their
entirety.

2. Notice of Intent. The Board hereby finds and directs that at Ieast 15 days before
the issuance of any portion of the Series 2026 Bonds, the Notice of Intent will be filed with the
Sponsoring Entity, and that a description of the Series 2026 Project, including an explanation of
the necessity for, and the names of the proposed users of, the Series 2026 Project is set forth in
such notice. Each of the President, the Vice President, the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary
of the Board are hereby severally authorized and directed to transmit to the Governing Body the
Notice of Intent, substantially in the form presented at this meeting, with such changes as may be
approved by the President or Vice President of this Board and Bond Counsel, as soon as practical
but in no event later than the 15" day before the date of issuance of any portion of the Series
2026 Bonds.

3. Authorization of Issuance of the Series 2026 Bonds and Approval of a Bond
Indentures. The Issuer hereby authorizes and directs the issuance of the Hospital Revenue
Bonds, to be issued in one or more series or subseries, in the maximum aggregate principal
amount of not to exceed $220,000,000, in accordance with one or more trust indentures
(collectively, the “Trust Indentures™), dated as of February 1, 2026 (or such other date as set
forth therein), between the Issuer and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, National

3



Association, as trustee (the “Trustee™). The proposed Trust Indentures, having been submitted to
the Board, the terms, form and provisions of the Trust Indentures and the Series 2026 Bonds are
hereby authorized and approved, and the President or the Vice President of the Board are hereby
severally authorized and directed to execute and deliver such Trust Indentures, in the name and
on behalf of the Issuer. The Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Issuer are hereby
severally authorized to attest and affix the Issuer’s seal to the Series 2026 Bonds, with such
changes therein as the officer executing the same may approve, such approval to be conclusively
evidenced by such officer’s execution thereof.

4. Approval of Loan of Bond Proceeds: Loan Agreements. The loan of the proceeds
of the sale of the Series 2026 Bonds by the Issuer to the Hospital in order to provide funds to
finance the Series 2026 Project shall be effected pursuant to the terms and provisions of one or
more loan agreements, dated as of February 1, 2026 (or such other date as set forth therein) (the
“Loan Agreements”), between the Issuer and the Hospital, in substantially the form presented to
the Board herewith and its counsel, the form, terms and provisions of such Loan Agreements
being hereby authorized and approved. The President or the Vice President of the Issuer are
hereby severally authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Loan Agreements on behalf
of the Issuer, with such changes therein as the officer executing the same may approve, such
approval to be conclusively evidenced by such officer’s execution thereof.

5. Approval of Sale of Bonds to Underwriters: Approval of Contracts of Purchase.
The sale and delivery of the Series 2026 Bonds by the Issuer to Underwriters, at the prices set
forth in the contracts of purchase referred to below, are hereby authorized and approved. Said
sale and delivery of the Series 2026 Bonds shall be effected in accordance with the terms and
provisions of one or more contracts of purchase, substantially in the form of the Contract of
Purchase presented today (collectively the “Contracts of Purchase” and each a “Contract of
Purchase™), each to be dated as of the date of its execution and delivery, by and among the Issuer
and the Underwriters and acknowledged and approved by the Hospital, a draft of which was
presented to the Board and its counsel, the form, terms and provisions of such Contracts of
Purchase being hereby authorized and approved. The President and the Vice President of the
Issuer are hereby severally authorized and directed to execute and deliver such Contracts of
Purchase on behalf of the Issuer, with such changes therein as the officer executing the same
may approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by such officer’s execution thereof. In
connection with the execution and delivery of the Contracts of Purchase by the Issuer and the
Underwriters, the Hospital is to execute and deliver one or more letters of representations and
indemnification substantiaily in the form of the Letter of Representations and Indemnification
{each a “Letter of Representation™) attached to the applicable Contract of Purchase as an exhibit,
the form, terms and provisions of such Letter of Representation being hereby authorized and
approved, and the President and the Vice President of the Issuer are hereby severally authorized
and directed to execute and deliver such Letter of Representation on behalf of the Issuer, with
such changes therein as the officer executing such Letter of Representation may approve, such
approval to be evidenced by such officer’s execution thereof.

6. Terms of Series 2026 Bonds; Pricing Committee. The Underwriters and the
Issuer are hereby authorized to complete each Contract of Purchase to sct forth the principal
amounts, interest rates and prices or yields for each maturity of the Series 2026 Bonds, subject to
the limitations that: (i) the Contract of Purchase as completed shall be approved by the officers

A-




executing the Contract of Purchase, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by their
execution thereof; (ii) the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2026 Bonds shall not exceed
$220,000,000; and (iii) the “net interest cost™ with respect to the Series 2026 Bonds shall not
exceed the “net interest cost” permitted by the Health Act. Any two directors are hercby
designated to act as a committee of the Board (the “Pricing Committee™) pursuant to the
provisions of Section 221.028(a) of the Act and Section 2.13 of the Bylaws of the Issuer for the
purposes of approving the purchase price, interest rates, maturities, and redemption provisions,
and the approval of the Pricing Committee of such items shall be conclusively evidenced by the
execution of the Trust Indentures, the Loan Agreements and the Contracts of Purchase by the
officers of the Issuer.

7. Official Statements. The Board hereby authorizes the use and distribution of the
information described in the thirteenth recital of this Resolution in the preliminary official
statements and the official statements prepared with respect to the Series 2026 Bonds
(collectively, the “Official Statement™); provided that, in adopting this Resolution, the Issuer
hereby disclaims any responsibility for the Official Statement except for the information
described as having been provided by it in the thirteenth recital of this Resolution and expressly
disclaims any responsibility for any other information included as part of the Official Statement.

8. Approval of Financing Team. The Board hereby approves the appointment of the
following firms and entities as the Financing Team to accomplish the issuance, sale and
marketing of the Series 2026 Bonds: (i) Hilltop Securities, Inc., as senior managing underwriter
and representing such other firms as may be approved for inclusion in the underwriting syndicate
from time to time (collectively, the “Underwriters™); and (ii) Bracewell LLP, as Bond Counsel.

9. Ratification and Confirmation of Prior Actions. The actions taken by Bond
Counsel to publish the notice of public hearing with respect to the requirements of the public
approval requirements of the Code, the selection of Shelby Harden as hearing officer and the
scheduling and holding of the public hearing are hereby approved, authorized, ratified and
confirmed.

10. Conditions Precedent. The actions and obligations authorized in this Resolution
shall be subject to and conditioned upon the receipt by the Issuer, on the date of initial delivery
of the Series 2026 Bonds against payment therefor (the “Closing Date™), of (i) a certificate of a
duly authorized officer of the Hospital substantially to the effect that each of the representations
and warranties in the applicable Contract of Purchase is true, accurate and complete on the
Closing Date as if made on and as of the Closing Date, and that all obligations of the Hospital to
be performed by it at or prior to the Closing Date have been duly performed; (ii) the purchase
price for the Series 2026 Bonds; (iii) evidence satisfactory to Bond Counsel of AER approval of
the Series 2026 Bonds and the Series 2026 Project; and (iv) such opinions, evidences,
certificates, instruments or other documents as shail be requested by the Issuer’s Counsel or by
Bond Counsel, to evidence due performance or satisfaction by the Hospital at or prior to such
time of all agreements then to be performed and all conditions then to be satisfied by it.

11.  Authorization to Perform Necessary Acts. The officers, employees and agents of
the Issuer, and each of them, shall be and each is expressly authorized, empowered and directed
from time to time to do and perform all acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and deliver

-5-



in the name and under the corporate seal, if applicable, and on behalf of the Issuer all certificates,
financing statements, termination statements, instruments and other papers, whether or not herein
mentioned, as they may determine to be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the terms and
provisions of this resolution and of the Series 2026 Bonds to be issued hereunder, as well as the
terms and provisions of the Contracts of Purchase hereby authorized and approved, such
determination to be conclusively evidenced by the performance of such acts and things and the
execution of any such certificate, financing statement, instrument or other paper.

12.  Authorization to File Form 8038. The Board authorizes and directs that an officer
of the Issuer submit to the Secretary of the Treasury, not later than the 15th day of the second
calendar month after the close of the calendar quarter in which any of the Series 2026 Bonds are
issued (or on such other dates as shall be required in the opinion of Bond Counsel so that interest
on the Series 2026 Bonds shall not be includable in gross income for federal income tax

purposes), a statement or statements containing the information required by Section 149(e) of the
Code.

13.  Affirmative Findings. Based upon representations made by the Hospital to the
Board, the Board hereby affirmatively finds that:

(a) the Series 2026 Project is required, necessary or convenient for health care,
research and education, one or more, within the State of Texas, will aid in the
provision, expansion and improvement of health facilities, and the issuance of the
Series 2026 Bonds are in furtherance of the public purposes of the Act and will
promote the health and welfare of the citizens of the State of Texas; and

(b) all notices, approvals or consents required by the Act for the issuance of the
Series 2026 Bonds have been given or obtained.

14. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage, and it is accordingly so resolved.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 28" DAY OF OCTOBER, 2025.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

TARRANT COUNTY CULTURAL
EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE
CORPORATION



TARRANT COUNTY CULTURAL EDUCATION FACILITIES
FINANCE CORPORATION Filed

Tarrant County Clerk
10:27 am, Nov 14 2025

201 MAIN STREET, SUITE 700

ise Nichols
FORT WORTH, TEXAS 76102 Mary Louise Nicholson
County Clerk
b il
DIRECTORS ¥ LMwillis
STEVEN R. PURVIS, PRESIDENT RANDAL L. DEAN
ROBERT M. LANSFORB, SECRETARY SECRETARY OF THE BOARD

ALAN BARRON

TOBI L. JACKSON
SHELLI A. HARVESON
KEVIN STADLER

NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE BONDS AND
PROVIDING CERTAIN INFORMATION RELATING THERETO

TO: THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF TARRANT COUNTY, TEXAS

TARRANT COUNTY CULTURAL EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE
CORPORATION (the “Issuer”), in accordance with the provisions of Section 221.062 of Chapter
221 of the Texas Health and Safety Code, as amended (the “Act™), hereby submits the following
information:

1. The Issuer proposes to issue not more than $220,000,000 in aggregate principal
amount of its Hospital Revenue Bonds (Methodist Hospitals of Dallas) (the “Series
2026 Bonds”) in one or more series, in an amount which will provide the funds,
after payment of certain costs relating to the issuance of the Series 2026 Bonds, to
finance or refinance the purchase, development, construction, reconstruction,
renovation, rehabilitation, and/or equipping of health facilities of Methodist
Hospitals of Dallas d/b/a Methodist Health System, a Texas nonprofit corporation
(the “System™), described on Exhibit A hereto (the “Series 2026 Project™).

2. The System, or an affiliated tax-exempt corporation controlled, directly or
indirectly, by the System, is the user of the health facilities financed with all or a
portion of the Series 2026 Bonds. Constructing and equipping the Series 2026
Project is necessary to the continued provision of quality healthcare by the System:.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the signature of an authorized officer of the Issuer is set forth
as of this 14™ day of November, 2025.

TARRANT COUNTY CULTURAL

EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE
CORPORATION

By L /7:_
i B AT T




Filed

Tarrant County Clerk
10:27 am, Nov 14 2025
EXHIBIT A Mary Louise Nicholson
County Clerk
DESCRIPTION OF HEALTH FACILITIES by LMWillis
SERIES 2026 PROJECT

The proceeds of the Series 2026 Bonds will be used to: (i) finance or refinance the
purchase, development, construction, reconstruction, renovation, rehabilitation, and/or equipping
of health facilities of the System (collectively, the “Series 2026 Project™), and (ii) pay the costs of
issuance of the Series 2026 Bonds.

The new money portion of the transaction will be used for the construction, renovation and
expansion of hospital facilities and the acquisition and installation of capital equipment at:

Cost Not 1o
Exceed
Collin County:
Methodist Celina Medical Center $210,000,000
1500 S Dallas Pkwy
Celina, Texas
Methodist Richardson Medical Center $25,000,000

2831 E President George Bush Hwy
Richardson, Texas

Need and Justification for Issuance of Series 2026 Bonds

The System provides valuable healthcare services to the residents of North Central Texas.
The Series 2026 Project will enable the System to expand its facilities to provide additional
specialized services and to expand current services to provide improved and more cost-effective
healthcare.

The Series 2026 Project is necessary to promote and develop healthcare, research and
education for the public purpose of promoting health and welfare of the citizens of Texas, and
improving the adequacy, cost and accessibility of healthcare, research and education in Texas.




APPLICATION FOR ISSUANCE OF REVENUE BONDS
BY
TARRANT COUNTY CULTURAL EDUCATION FACILITIES
FINANCE CORPORATION

WHEREAS, the Tarrant County Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation (a
Texas non-profit corporation) (the "Issuer”) was created by Tarrant County, Texas (the "County")
pursuant to the Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation Act, 337 Local Government
Code (the "Act"); and

WHEREAS, the Issuer is authorized by the Act to issue, sell, and deliver its revenue bonds
(the “Bonds”) for the purpose of paying the cost of facilities, as described in the Act; and

WHEREAS, the County requires all Applicants to pay a $10,000.00 application fee,
WHICH IS REFUNDABLE by the County at the request of the Applicant at any time prior to
Commissioners Court approving the issuance of the Bonds.

Methodist Hospitals of Dallas d/b/a Methodist Health System

Name of Applicant
1441 North Beckley Avenue, Dallas, Texas 75203

Address
Robert Milone, (214) 947-6405

Name of Contact and Telephone Number
$220,000,000 (maximum par amount)

Proposed Amount of Bonds

Applicant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Issuer and its Officers and Directors
against all losses, costs, damages, expenses, and liabilities of whatsoever nature (including, but
not limited to, attorney's fees, litigation, and court costs, amounts paid in settlement and amounts
paid to discharge judgments) incurred by or asserted against any such indemnified party directly
or indirectly resulting from, arising out of, or relating to the issuance, offering, sale, or delivery of
the Bonds, or the design, construction, installation, operation, use, occupancy, maintenance or
ownership of Applicant's project, whether or not any such indemnified party is alleged or found to
have been negligent in connection therewith.

DATED this 28th day of October, 2025.

Application for Issuance of Revenue Bonds
Page 1

IM-#10864415.2




The $10,000.00 check should be made payable to Tarrant County, Texas.
Mail the checks and Application to:

Randal L. Dean, Secretary

Tarrant County Cultural Education Finance Facilities Corporation
201 Main Street, Suite 801

Fort Worth, TX 76102

Application for Issuance of Revenue Bonds
Page 2



MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF
TARRANT COUNTY CULTURAL EDUCATION FACILITIES
FINANCE CORPORATION

October 28, 2025

A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Tarrant County Cultural Education
Facilities Finance Corporation was held on Tuesday, October 28, 2025, at 12:00 p.m., pursuant to
proper notice to all Board Members, regarding the Methodist Hospitals of Dallas and Baylor Scott
& White Health bond applications.

Board members in attendance were:

Steven Purvis
Alan Barron
Shelli Harveson
Kevin Stadtler
Robert Lansford

Also, in attendance were Matt McCabe and Shelby Hardin, Bond Counsel and Randal L.
Dean, Issuer Counsel.

Mr. Dean provided the proposed Resolution and supporting documents regarding the
Methodist Hospitals of Dallas and Baylor Scott & White Health bond applications for review by
the Board Members.

Bond Counsel for applicants and Mr. Dean explained the proposed Methodist Hospitals of
Dallas and Baylor Scott & White Health bond applications and answered questions about the
issuance and use of the funds from Board Members. After discussion, on motion of and seconded
by Alan Barron the Resolution for Methodist Hospitals of Dallas was unanimously APPROVED.
After discussion, on motion of Robert Lansford and seconded by Kevin Stadler the Resolution for
Baylor Scott & White Health was unanimously APPROVED.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1:30 p.m.

clgier

Randal L. Dean, Board Secretary




APPROVAL OF
THE COUNTY JUDGE OF COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS
IN RESPECT TO SECTION 147(f) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE

Tarrant County Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation
Hospital Revenue Bonds (Methodist Hospitals of Dallas) Series 2026

Solely for the purposes of meeting the requirements of section 147(f) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), the undersigned County Judge of Collin County,
Texas (the “County”) hereby approves the issuance of the above-described obligations (the
“Bonds”) and the facilities to be financed thereby. Such approval is based upon the Certificate of
Public Hearing Officer, attached hereto as Exhibit A.

This approval is not to be construed as (i) a representation or warranty by the County
or the undersigned that the Bonds will be paid or that any obligations assumed by any of the
parties will, in fact, be performed, (ii) a pledge of the faith and credit of or by the County;
further, the fact that the undersigned has approved the Bonds as required by the Code may
not, in any event, be used as a sales device with respect to the Bonds, or (iii) this approval
shall not be construed as a representation or warranty by the County concerning the validity
of the Bonds.

EXECUTED as of the day of , 2025.

County Judge
Collin County, Texas



State of Texas § Court Order
Collin County § 2025-xxx-11-17
Commissioners Court §

An order of the Collin County Commissioners Court acknowledging the issuance of a loan.

In accordance with the Internal Revenue Code section 147(f), the Collin County Commissioners
Court hereby acknowledges the issuance of a loan facilitated by Tarrant County Cultural Education
Facilities Corporation Hospital Revenue Bonds (Methodist Hospitals of Dallas) Series 2026, and
related matters.

A motion was made, seconded, and carried by a majority of the court members in attendance
during a regular session on Monday, November 17, 2025.

Chris Hill, County Judge Darrell Hale, Commissioner, Pct 3

Susan Fletcher, Commissioner, Pct 1 B Duncan Webb, Commissioner, Pct 4

Cheryl Williams, Commissioner, Pct 2 ATTEST: Stacey Kemp, County Clerk




EXHIBIT A

CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC HEARING OFFICER

[See attached]




CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC HEARING OFFICER
REGARDING PUBLIC HEARING (INTERNAL REVENUE CODE § 147(f))

Re: Tarrant County Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation Hospital Revenue
Bonds (Methodist Hospitals of Dallas) Series 2026 in one or more series (the “Bonds™)

I, the undersigned, do hereby make and execute this certificate for the benefit of all persons
interested in the reissuance for federal tax purposes of the above-captioned Bonds.

I hereby certify as follows:

1. I am the duly appointed hearing officer for the public hearing which was held in connection

with the issuance of the Bonds at the time and place indicated in the Notice of Public
Hearing attached hereto as Schedule 1.

2. The Notice of Public Hearing was published no less than seven days before the date of the
public hearing, as evidenced by the Affidavit of Publication of the Notice of Public Hearing
attached hereto as Schedule 1.

3. All persons (if any) appearing at the public hearing were given an opportunity to comment
on the proposed issuance of the Bonds. No such persons appeared or made comments
except as set forth on Schedule 2 attached hereto,

4, After giving all interested persons an opportunity to appear and comment, the public
hearing was declared closed.

WITNESS MY HAND as of the 3 1" day of October, 2025.

helby A.

Hearing Officer

Schedule 1 -  Affidavit of Publication of the Notice of Public Hearing (with Attached Notice of
Public Hearing)

Schedule Z-  Names and Comments of Persons Attending Public Hearing

IM-#10865300.2



Schedule 1
to Exhibit A

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION WITH ATTACHED NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING



Che Dallas Morning News

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF DALLAS

Before me, a Notary Public in and for Dallas County, this day personally appeared
D

avid Ferster, Advertising Representative for THE DALLAS MORNING NEWS
being duly sworn by oath, states the attached advertisement of: Ad# 19293

BRACEWELL LLP

Appeared in The Dallas Morning News on  October 24,2025

Dallas M}ﬁling News Sales Operations

Swom to and subscribed before me this Date: 10.24.2025

DANIEL NAVARRO
"'ﬁ‘%:"ﬂ:h"’: Notary Public, State of Texas
:g'}. ?’g Comm. Expires 03-22-2028
oS Notaw 1D 134822087

LN

~
e
-

)

DY

————Notary Public, State of Texas




The Dallas Mornina News dallasnows.com  October24. 2025 5B

Marketplace

©One of the most trusted brands in North Texacs.

L] = |

=y
* Adoptions wn

Get started today at dallasnews.com/classifieds or call 214.745.8123.

(rd-tm)(mnm ) (_ vabsa oposats ) (Wi hPmponis ) | Nishmpessk ) ( FiekihPopesaks )
NTTA THVTTATION FoR Bi08

et 3 et st BID NUMBER: RFB sta6
RED SCT-NTTOGI-MA recevid
Agtomaibve ond Eeuisment Tires Sevarh the

v h-m%n—u%mn
ol Dt Purnne o e o MIFTA v s e, | (1o e S e o o e kS, T o, T T

MTTA In accesting bids uafil 11772003 of 11:00 &um. CT, M rereplmsgorberrierrcfresion ool e

Venciors con resisier, Gownicnd Rull swolect detolls ord documents. submil

‘bics o NTT/ BID NUMBER;: RFB @301
(hitos :Zurwrse.nttomarkat slace.orp) . PRE-BID AT 2:00 P, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 4 125 AT $80 MAIN STREET, THE COLONY
& mail Sor nusatons TEXAS. ALTHOUGH NOT MANDATORY. BIDDERS ARE STRONGLY URGED TO ATTEND THIS
ey CONFERENCE. ANY MISUNDERSTARDINGS DUE TO NON-ATTENDANCE WILL NOT 8E
= REASON FOR LETTING A BIDDER DUT OF THE BID.
m RESULTS WILL BE READ AT 1:10 PA, THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 325,
UNIDENTIFIED s e R s scoPs oF woRx:
TEENAGE RFS 070 NTT-00-G-MA coralsts of Arbor Glen Road),
OMICTBE GIETUn EMciricol Suvslies 10 Romsey Lo (Bl
Project Descristion: Purchiss orsd dethvery of Commen slectrical msslies | e Brolect, The work intiuties. buf I8 ramc
s b In-housm slectricions for routine L Sy er o corcrs Fovemes on fex Soms moaracs.
ROMECE e NTTA ia ocoesting bias unll TS st 11:00 a.m. CT. 1-inch to #°F reindorced concrate LT LF of bech
MECENTER 3 finm, 4300 LF of B-inch waler line, and oy other work deemed necessory by i Cify of The Colomy.
FOR RENT 3 | Vencors con realster, dmniens full arslect detolts ond documents. subeil | | All of e abovs sholl b dons TxDOT and NCTCDG Ciy ot
“ bida 10 NTTAY e Colomy's Addencia o 03 per Ingiryctions of the Clty of The Colomy Cifv Engineer. Al construction
* Acreae, Farms and (vt iom iPwrarm. nl lomarked ploce.org ). the City of The Colony Stondards. The ealsion
Rark o of probotis thw cveroll project
Emoll austiors e
of wetatte. Secinications. bid Brosasl fermd. oS ord Ieatruciions fo e cownionded frem
the PlanetBids v omalobie roe the e of M Amaocio. . o M0 Meocoarn
Med S . Fort WO T NI, dor $10180 s tet. Pl col Kivin Crommeddl o (H7) A4
"m 7444 or emmoii ot keromwokdt #noiff.com fa coordinate decument BCk
s sy el o CoRbler Checks for b boseds. e versdor and
RFB 0104-PGB-BCN-PD i il b occamted. The becer st bt Pt of Irauronce oo Bl Boad n B ot
PGB Sepment § Woll Siubilization of flve (%) porcars of e bid ameunt o Joa Gerum (Jasrumthecolonytz_gov], Originals st be
mubenitied In the bid socket OR recetved by I Purchasing Mancper betore the bid

Profect Devcristen: mimnmmwn

‘weballs where sroscective bicders Somiood them.
& h The Morth Texos Toltwoy for the ebove wnmnmmmmmwnmm-mm&v
Ranches R n—nwmnm-wllvmuuwm:tomn reserves Iha righi to refect ony bids, In whole or In port, i wolve oy Informoliy Ie omy bid.
-uma&umnwm mnwmmmumm-hn—m—--m-mm
NOTICE (A8 Irwww.nTIomor ke plocaorp). B will Be read of 0 virtuol bid
—umhﬂlmdlnmﬂhlrimh’ Sincaretr.
Residential rental Jou Oerum.
k o= Purchaaing Manager
s o be heid on TS of Wrt0am. CT. YIS
quired to be li- suanmmmnw‘
censed by the TX
E moil DiourchaslngBnt 10,0 K uestions on rrsistration or of
Real Estate Com- wetnt =
furgy e 810 NOTICE
$00-250-8732 m Abverete 1.0, b i Comest s socked srossmats for Kcien
Losators may ad s e T SIS b TR S R
vertise apanment RFB SIP-ONT-01CH-PD
i iy DNT Segment § Povement Rangtiimation Abroracn 150 Chikd Mutrition Desartment
sals s =
Lallmin t o Horry Hines i Is 10415, Worn iocioons T v T5 2o
op) £
iy 808 have the milling of exteting . seollen of Toiats In ™n e
same featurcs. amelicotion of seosrid, new cashoft overiay. removol of french orolns.
amount of rent. Instullotion of wolley sutiers. work rone povernent be o0 lober
ph morting1. and 100 woling of Than 10:00 AM G November 19, ‘wrivtr® ey will thes be cecned. Thers
quoted in an ad wiil be 0 pre-bid mesting on Wowember 7 @ 1.8 of e oodress obowe. AISD.
Iy be the start e MorTh Texas Tollway Auinartiy (MTTA) I occenting b for e st | | reserwes i iaht o relect o e o remommaes onc 10 accest e rescaeme
mentioned sofctotion weeh 110005 of 11:60 s CT. Bidcers 1hot i i the et terest of thy diyarict.
ing rent for a basic 5 e e e
unit which docs not | somin. 422 pated artve. (NP Pwarel AT RSSO D). mnu bid
: borfirehub.com v Fi
have all ad Todor nelanbochaod. | oqiicetu.com by oosrios mosiing on Avaies o 358 pm CT. Sou AP docomants for
features, Prososals will be ey A s s sy
[Paplicly roed of 3:48 44120 - mtormmnn AR b sk an TUANIN ot 200 P CT: B REB MIBNTTEGSMA
[ 2000 P e o RFB cocuments for mesting Aftermorket Auio Parts
=T o G o Donaw

Emall bidsurthosias@ntio_ors for euestions on resisirolion or use of
webmtte.

e

RFB SS4HTER-G5-MA
Geerol Mabors Orlginol Eaulserent Monuioctorss (OEM)
Tothway Aythority [NTTA} ks occepting bids for fhe obove: g bockeies
fhation untfl 1 U028 of 11:00 a.m. CT. Bldders. ary

SNCoUTDRad 10 Vpload Ihelr bids 10 NTT from nert e il
ifworee ot fmarketplace.ary), Bids will be reod ot o virtvol bid kel oo
s.m. CT. NTTA bn ocoeoting bics et 1000 ot am. CT
o repister, Qirmkonsd full swohect detolls coe docoments. submit
il Dot Bt O TUNOA2S of 3:00 & CT.
oo ‘wuﬁ-““'m-mnm
= for e
e dvarisad nance. resol ‘wetmlte.
= s newwepr & siion. rencrva e —
b i T [ WOTICE OF SALE. NOTICE OF SALE
Ao ] s 1 Toren KAUFMAN COUNTY FRESH WATER SUPPLY DISTRICT HO. 44 RAUFMAN COUNTY FRESH WATER SUPPLY DISTRICT NO. 48
prsilal’ Locol Governmant (A Poilticol Subdivision of the Stole of Texos <A Polificol Subdivision of e State of Texos
., Cooe: Secrioa e, within Kout  Texaa) Lecated within K ovimon County, Texoa)
e s i terma. s 300,200
o o i hmm e Untioied Tox Uittty Bonds. Series 2005 Untimited Tox Utlity Bonds, Series 3025
o g Solkctiation,
e Camiral Time Bics to by Sobmmiried: 1:00 AM., Camtros Tieme
el el Foctory In odition 1o Bica %o be Opened: T2:0 P, Centrol Tima: Bl o b Gt 18 P, ot Time
st el oo meice. This Renvest Wednescoy, Movember 5.
e for Compatiive Seated
s b 25 Buy and sell Procaaats (RECIP) Ploce ond Tirw of $ole: The Boord of Suserviors of Koutman County Prace ana o
"'m“"" ith locals. (Brovides wATICet Fresh Woter Supoly Districl Wo. A [The "District™) will meet to receive: Fresh Water Sumply Disirics Mo. 48 (e “DISINCI™) will FeCehve ond dub-
e wh Sl o o 1o | [ Pusiicty reas bias tor me surchoss of the 1s. Tox ri| nchy $4,008.060 Unlimived Tox Uiy
fe e Sunar | [t Bands, Sories 3025 tthe “Bords®) ot ihe desinroted mestioa ploce aut- | | Banca. Series 2075 (e “Bonde} of the desiioled mesting sioce
o 214.745.0123 proscests for 5k e boundories of The District, of the offices of Rose. P.C.. 14000 ——g-mm of the pifices of Cooty Rose, P.C.. laoe
) daiasneascom | |comaideration by [Morth. Do Pariciewy, Sabte o, Eniis, s e o Morth Ditios Porkwor. Sotte 350, Dolics. Texos P54 of 1:8 PML. Central
O iy ity or i) Ihe City of Dotics. Time, Wednesday, November 5, 225, Time. Wednecay. Movember 5. J07%.
'wmr' clasufigs Deporiment of
Aviation. Address of Bids: Bida tor the Bonda may be deliversd 1o the District siec- | [ Agoruss of Bics: B for the Berscs mev be deliversd o The District siec-
wiibeoare. | |7l by eieshone or detivered directly Jo the Disirict n @ secked en. | - (ronicatt, b ekesihons or detfverse Girectiy Ko the Glaiict bn o seoted sn-
( wontoby ) ( wetosy ) ( Wetnmny ) [Memmmmese o oo
Wednesder, Navember
1. 208, ot Y00 o
CASH FOR YOUR HOUSE {SOT) o o Ly
@, Conderee Carise
ey Y 3
Xy Any Condition Ao e v
: Dotics, TX IS
o Any price. Conersi contracion
s sob K bite e,
Call Jim 972-898-5740 | (=t

BILLBUYSHOUSES com |55

Trusted Texan Buying Houses “as is™ Since 1991 rebalin Unked obove) (5 Apedel— oy oy dow. T sfer 35 48 e ot et
::h poried fo this Bid Form.” Big Form.*
Prompt Cash Offer ryery e i £ Sy

Bill Pays Closing Costs %&:‘r
Sell Quick Without Repairs

Bk 914,478,8979 %

Cintosn ) Cmin ) (_imimim ) (_imtiem )

NOTICE OF FUBLIC HEARING

TARRANT COUNTY CULTURAL EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE CORPORATION
HOSPITAL REVENUE BONDS.
ST HOSPITALS OF

B
The ~issver o Ociober T1, 2. of 10:00 a.m. Interssted
wmmmﬂmmmmnmmm atiove by dioling -+1.858.080.

g bawwonce of the tamr. s prucnt
10 0 plon of ‘sioted o
oxcaed e “BoAcy”). Tha Bonds will be kiued o8 “wosliied SUT(CIT) bomds™ pursuand o
Tocton 113 of . Insenc Reveae Code of 196 (1 ~Cooe-): Proceece 0 e Banch i b s o
‘corperation, o on k.
fiticte Mareol (Collectivety, e “OBiIB0r). O will b s K fitnce ord reflsonce hosntiol ond re-

focilit ‘arry ane or more of

e} 1R S Caflnc,
Texos 7300 (Colin County) (S170,000.090); and (b) 31 E President Bush Hr, Richuordacet,
 Texos 5082 (Coflin County) (F15.000.000) (coliectivety; He “Prolect”). The Obligor ks the camer ond
Brincioal user of The Project.

¢ No Commissions || Downlnad | | omeimmmmseiitsmom s e st e s e
* No Closing Costs | | our app at | [ e e o i o s e st >

214'906 2291 Just Quick Cash! 7 Day Closings! | | dallasnews.com oy dpsing et S gl gl e sy b

il their views in writing to Ma. Horden srior o he dote scheduled for the heoring.

55 Mor Monoy For You S5

We Buy Houses In Any Condition Or Location

This

motice Iy
I |- o i 01 o e e,




Schedule 2
to Exhibit A

NAMES AND COMMENTS OF PERSONS ATTENDING PUBLIC HEARING

None,




CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION

[, the undersigned County Clerk of Tarrant County, Texas, hereby certify as follows:

1. The Commissioners Court of Tarrant County, Texas {(the “Commissioners Court™)
convened in regular meeting, on December 9, 2025, at the regular meeting place hereof; and the
roll was called of the duly constituted and acting members of the Commissioners Court, to wit:

Tim O’Hare County Judge

Roderick Miles Jr. Commissioner
Alisa Simmons Commissioner
Matt Krause Commissioner
Manny Ramirez Commissioner

and all of the members of the Commissioners Court were present, except
, thus constituting a quorum. Whereupon, among other business, a
written Resolution (the "Resolution"} bearing the following caption was introduced for
consideration by the Commissioners Court:

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF TARRANT
COUNTY, TEXAS, APPROVING THE SALE AND ISSUANCE OF ONE OR
MORE SERIES 2026 BONDS BY TARRANT COUNTY CULTURAL
EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE CORPORATION FOR THE PURPOSE
OF FINANCING CERTAIN HEALTH FACILITIES FOR THE BENEFIT OF
METHODIST HOSPITALS OF DALLAS DYB/A METHODIST HEALTH
SYSTEM AND ITS AFFILIATES AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

was duly introduced for consideration of said Commissioners Court. It was then duly moved and
seconded that said Resolution be passed; and, after due discussion, said motion, carrying with it
the passage of said Resolution, prevailed and carried by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTENTIONS:

A true, full and correct copy of the aforesaid Reselution passed at the meeting described in the
above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this Certificate; said Resolution has
been duly recorded in the official minutes of said Commissioners Court; the above and foregoing
paragraph is a true and correct excerpt from said minutes of said meeting pertaining to the
passage of said Resolution; the persons named in the above and foregoing paragraph, at the time
of said meeting and the passage of said Resolution, were the duly chosen, qualified and acting
officers and members of said Commissioners Court as indicated therein; each of said officers and
members was duly and sufficiently notified officially and personally in advance, of the time,
place and purpose of the aforesaid meeting and that said Resolution would be introduced and
considered for passage at said meeting, and each of said officers and members consented in
advance to the holding of said meeting for such purpose; and said meeting was open to the




public, and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given, all as
required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended.

SIGNED AND SEALED the 9th day of December, 2025

Mary Louise Nicholson
County Clerk, Tarrant County, Texas
(SEAL)




RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF TARRANT
COUNTY, TEXAS, APPROVING THE SALE AND ISSUANCE OF ONE OR
MORE SERIES 2026 BONDS BY TARRANT COUNTY CULTURAL
EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE CORPORATION FOR THE PURPOSE
OF FINANCING CERTAIN HEALTH FACILITIES FOR THE BENEFIT OF
METHODIST HOSPITALS OF DALLAS D/B/A METHODIST HEALTH
SYSTEM AND ITS AFFILIATES AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, by resolution the Commissioners Court (the “Governing Body™) of Tarrant
County, Texas (the “Sponsoring Entity™), authorized and approved the creation of the Tarrant
County Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation (the “Issuer™), as a nonprofit cultural
education facilities finance corporation under the provisions of Chapter 337 Texas Local
Government Code, as amended (the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, Methodist Hospitals of Dallas d/b/a Methodist Health System, a Texas
nonprofit corporation (the “System™), has submitted an application requesting that the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) of the Issuer consider the issuance of one or more series of tax-exempt
bonds (the “Series 2026 Bonds™) as permitted under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code”), to provide funds to: (a) finance or refinance the purchase, development,
construction, reconstruction, renovation, rehabilitation and/or equipping of health facilities of the
System or its affiliates (the “Project”); and (b) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2026
Bonds; and

WHEREAS, after reviewing such application, the Board adopted a resolution whereby
the Issuer agreed, subject to certain conditions, to issue the Series 2026 Bonds; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of Section 221.062 of the of the Texas
Health and Safety Code, as amended (the “Health Facilities Act™), the Issuer filed with the
Governing Body of the Sponsoring Entity a Notice to the Commissioners Court of Tarrant
County, Texas, of Intent to Issue Bonds and Providing Certain information Relating Thereto, a
copy of which is on file among the official records of the Governing Body; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body desires to approve by resolution the sale and issuance
of the Series 2026 Bonds approved by the Issuer in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed
$220,000,000;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF
TARRANT COUNTY, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. Findings. Determinations and Statements. The findings, determinations
and statements set forth in the preamble hereof are hereby incorporated by references as if set
forth in full.

Section 2. Approval of Sale and Issuance of Series 2026 Bonds. The sale and
issuance of the Series 2026 Bonds, and the resolution of the Issuer providing therefor, are hereby
approved.




Section 3. Providing an Effective Date. This resolution shall be in full force and
effect from and after its passage, and it is accordingly so resolved.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF TARRANT
COUNTY, TEXAS, THIS 9" DAY OF DECEMBER, 2025.




GENERAL CERTIFICATE OF TARRANT COUNTY, TEXAS

I, the undersigned County Clerk of Tarrant County, Texas (the “Sponsoring Entity’"), make
this certification for the benefit of the Attorney General of the State of Texas and for all persons
interested in the validity of proceedings of the Tarrant County Cultural Education Facilities
Finance Corporation (the “Issuer™) related to the issuance by the Issuer of its Hospital Revenue
Bonds (Methodist Hospitals of Dallas) Series 2026 (the “Series 2026 Bonds™).

l. The Issuer was created and authorized to act on behalf of the Sponsoring Entity
pursuant to the Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation Act, Chapter 337, Texas Local
Government Code, as amended (the “Act™), and the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the
Issuer were approved by the Commissioners Court (the “Governing Body”™) of the Sponsering
Entity.

2. On October 28, 2025, and at all times since such date, the following named persons
have been duly appointed by the Governing Body of the Sponsoring Entity as members of the
Board of Directors of the Issuer:

Steven R. Purvis, President Robert M. Lansford, Secretary
Tobi L. Jackson, Director Alan Barron
Shelli A. Harveson Kevin Stadler
Vacant
3. No action has been taken by the Sponsoring Entity to limit the effectiveness of the

resolution of the Issuer authorizing the issuance of the Series 2026 Bonds or otherwise to affect
the bond transaction. No litigation is pending against the Sponsoring Entity or, to the best of my
knowledge after reasonable investigation, threatened against the Sponsoring Entity (a) to restrain
or enjoin the issuance or delivery of the Series 2026 Bonds; or (b} in any way contesting (i) the
right and power of the Sponsoring Entity in connection with any action taken by it towards the
creation of the Issuer or the issuance of the Series 2026 Bonds or (ii) the titles of the current
commission members or officers of the Sponsoring Entity to their respective offices.

4. A Notice to the Governing Body of the Sponsoring Entity of Intent to Issue Bonds
and Providing Certain Information Relating Thereto, a true and correct copy of which is attached
hereto as Exhibit A, was filed with the Governing Body on November 14, 2025.

5. The Attorney General of the State of Texas is hereby authorized to date this
Certificate on and as of the date of his approval of the Series 2026 Bonds, and this Certificate and
the matters herein certified shall be deemed for all purposes to be true, accurate and correct on and
as of that date, and on and as of the closing date, unless the Sponsoring Entity through an
authorized officer shall notify the Attorney General, The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, National Association, as trustee, the [ssuer and Hilltop Securities, Inc., as representative
of the underwriters of the Series 2026 Bonds, in writing to the contrary prior to either of such dates.




WITNESS MY HAND AND THE OFFICIAL SEAL OF THE SPONSORING ENTITY
THIS ,2025.

TARRANT COUNTY, TEXAS

By:
Mary Louise Nicholson
County Clerk

(SEAL)

Signature Page for General Certificate of Tarrant County




EXHIBIT A
Notice of Intent

[See attached]




TARRANT COUNTY CULTURAL EDUCATION FACILITIES

FINANCE CORPORATION

201 MAIN STREET, SUITE 700
FORT WORTH, TEXAS 76102

DIRECTORS
STEVEN R. PURVIS, PRESIDENT RANDAL L. DEAN
ROBERT M. LANSFORD, SECRETARY SECRETARY OF THE BOARD

ALAN BARRON

TOBI L. JACKSON
SHELLI A. HARVESON

KEVIN STADLER

NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE BONDS AND

PROVIDING CERTAIN INFORMATION RELATING THERETO
TO: THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF TARRANT COUNTY, TEXAS

TARRANT COUNTY CULTURAL EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE
CORPORATION (the “Issuer”), in accordance with the provisions of Section 221.062 of Chapter
221 of the Texas Health and Safety Code, as amended (the “Act”), hereby submits the following

information:

12

The Issuer proposes to issue not more than $220,000,000 in aggregate principal
amount of its Hospital Revenue Bonds (Methodist Hospitals of Dallas) (the “Series
2026 Bonds”) in one or more series, in an amount which will provide the funds,
after payment of certain costs relating to the issuance of the Series 2026 Bonds, to
finance or refinance the purchase, development, construction, reconstruction,
renovation, rehabilitation, and/or equipping of health facilities of Methodist
Hospitals of Dallas d/b/a Methodist Health System, a Texas nonprofit corporation
(the “System”), described on Exhibit A hereto (the “Series 2026 Project”).

The System, or an affiliated tax-exempt corporation controlled, directly or
indirectly, by the System, is the user of the health facilities financed with all or a
portion of the Series 2026 Bonds. Constructing and equipping the Series 2026
Project is necessary to the continued provision of quality healthcare by the System.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the signature of an authorized officer of the Issuer is set forth
as of this 14 day of November, 2025.

TARRANT COUNTY CULTURAL
EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE
CORPORATION

By o ﬁ:_
e BB DT AT




EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF HEALTH FACILITIES
SERIES 2026 PROJECT

The proceeds of the Series 2026 Bonds will be used to: (i) finance or refinance the
purchase, development, construction, reconstruction, renovation, rehabilitation, and/or equipping
of health facilities of the System (collectively, the “Series 2026 Project”™), and (ii) pay the costs of
issuance of the Series 2026 Bonds.

The new money portion of the transaction will be used for the construction, renovation and
expansion of hospital facilities and the acquisition and instailation of capital equipment at:

Cost Not to
Exceed
Collin County:
Methodist Celina Medical Center $210,000,000
1500 S Dallas Pkwy
Celina, Texas
Methodist Richardson Medical Center $25,000,000
2831 E President George Bush Hwy
Richardson, Texas

Need and Justification for Issuance of Series 2026 Bonds

The System provides valuable healthcare services to the residents of North Central Texas.
The Series 2026 Project will enable the System to expand its facilities to provide additional
specialized services and to expand current services to provide improved and more cost-effective
healthcare.

The Series 2026 Project is necessary to promote and develop healthcare, research and
education for the public purpose of promoting health and welfare of the citizens of Texas, and
improving the adequacy, cost and accessibility of healthcare, research and education in Texas.




APPROVAL OF
THE COUNTY JUDGE OF COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS
IN RESPECT TO SECTION 147(f) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE

Tarrant County Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation
Hospital Revenue Bonds (Methodist Hospitals of Dallas) Series 2026

Solely for the purposes of meeting the requirements of section 147(f) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), the undersigned County Judge of Collin County,
Texas (the “County”) hereby approves the issuance of the above-described obligations (the
“Bonds”) and the facilities to be financed thereby. Such approval is based upon the Certificate of
Public Hearing Officer, attached hereto as Exhibit A.

This approval is not to be construed as (i) a representation or warranty by the County
or the undersigned that the Bonds will be paid or that any obligations assumed by any of the
parties will, in fact, be performed, (ii) a pledge of the faith and credit of or by the County;
further, the fact that the undersigned has approved the Bonds as required by the Code may
not, in any event, be used as a sales device with respect to the Bonds, or (iii) this approval
shall not be construed as a representation or warranty by the County concerning the validity
of the Bonds.

o

EXECUTED as of the =2 day of NOVEMEER 7025

County Judge N
Collin County, Texas

IM-#10886953.2



EXHIBIT A

CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC HEARING OFFICER

[See attached]

IM-#10886953.2



CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC HEARING OFFICER

REGARDING PUBLIC HEARING (INTERNAL REVENUE CODE § 147(f))

Re: Tarrant County Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation Hospital Revenue
Bonds (Methodist Hospitals of Dallas) Series 2026 in one or more series (the “Bonds™)

I, the undersigned, do hereby make and execute this certificate for the benefit of all persons
interested in the reissuance for federal tax purposes of the above-captioned Bonds.

I hereby certify as follows:

1. 1 am the duly appointed hearing officer for the public hearing which was held in connection
with the issuance of the Bonds at the time and place indicated in the Notice of Public
Hearing attached hereto as Schedule 1.

2. The Notice of Public Hearing was published no less than seven days before the date of the
public hearing, as evidenced by the Affidavit of Publication of the Notice of Public Hearing

attached hereto as Schedule 1.

3. All persons (if any) appearing at the public hearing were given an opportunity to comment
on the proposed issuance of the Bonds. No such persons appeared or made comments
except as set forth on Schedule 2 attached hereto.

4, After giving all interested persons an opportunity to appear and comment, the public
hearing was declared closed.

WITNESS MY HAND as of the 31" day of October, 2025.

helby A.
Hearing

Schedule 1 -  Affidavit of Publication of the Notice of Public Hearing (with Attached Notice of
Public Hearing)

Schedule 2 -  Names and Comments of Persons Attending Public Hearing

IM-#10865300.2



Schedule 1
to Exhibit A

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION WITH ATTACHED NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING



@Che Dallas Morning News

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF DALLAS

Before me, a Notary Public in and for Dallas County, this day personally appeared
D

avid Ferster, Advertising Representative for THE DALLAS MORNING NEWS
being duly sworn by oath, states the attached advertisement of: Ad# 19293

BRACEWELL LLP

Appeared in The Dallas Morning News on October 24,2025

Dallas Mffning News Sales Operations

Swormn to and subscribed before me this Date: 10.24.2025

' AVARRO
N DANIEL N
_s;;»ﬁ"’téé:,: Notary Public, State of Texas

102 comm. Expires 03-22-2028
&S Notary 1D 134822087

Nl D

——Notary Public, State of Texas




The Dallas Mornina News dallasnews com _October 24.2025 5B

Marketplace

Onc of the most trusted brands in North Texas.

Get started today at dallasnews.com/classifieds or call 214.745.8123.

o l=] e

(&mﬁnum«a\ - Bids & Propossls (350 8 Poposats ) (845 & Proposls ) ((_ Bids & Proposats ) (2 & Progosals

""""’ Vintase 1973 Triumeh INVITATION FOR BIDS
Found lter motorcycle, TR? 106 Acres Red River D NUMBER: RFB 69-260
uumng/fnhm; Leases. “‘:;; 8+ n':":: " County $10K Jocre and .; PR SO by o
£ lost Ttem: -l Naecres Ree River. . PO s Aot SO orm bids recetved throush the PionatBids wedeil located ot
Natics - Business o oa:vendors ol TR ortal-home untl 2,00 PM, locol ime, THURSDAY,
e . e s 0o 18 for reaiering or bsdng 61 s profect nroush Planstbias.
# Notices L:,m,.,ll | (‘ - Profect Descristion: Purchase of fires for NTTA vehicles ond eauioment. | [NOYEMBER 12,2023, Thers Is 0o fes for resistaring or Dhdding o0 T e or e P eras yoiss
#Resorts, (amps, Iravel  ($wap Mects and Shows, P— —— T2 0 secyed anvelone merked whhfhe protoct mam/ots nomber 9nd wi ba socetoed Ui
eﬁnmtm T 52 Acres Ronch, NTTAL 96 SIoSLRIFIVACIES of 11208 S CT: 00 PM. local fime, THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 12. 2025,
Foll Conroe Swop documents, submit X
peemons Maet & Cor Corrol w0 Borsaln 4|00 oSl o e bas 1o NTTAS Marketoioce SIDNUMBER:RAD 46:e-0
$ki Diectory Oct. 4 - Oct. 2% bdrma. barn. Oll | (httos :iwww.nttomaorketploce.oro!
ESW"S/CM 2 arilling 009. PRE-DID AT 2:00 PAL TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 4. 215 AT 6800 MAIN STREET, THE COLONY
stadd Emoll tor roslstrotion or THOUGH DATORY, §IDOBKS ARE STROWGLY UROND YO ATTRMD THis
Memberships 408 Vomdors) use of webslte. mrluncm ANy MISUNDERSTANGINGS DUE TTENDANCE WILL NOT
B oyt reorchil 3 LETTING A BIDDER OUT OF THE 81D,
€ MNotices - Personal ) Fées Porkice RESULTS WILL BE READ AT 2:10 PM, THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2025.
UNIDENTIFIED s . o o v sy SCOPE OF WORK:
TEENAGE RFD 0z NTT00S A The scooe of work conalsts of he reconstruction of Hawse Drive (Arbor Glen Road 1o Paige Rood),
tectricol Supslies Adoms Drive (Poloe Road to Romsey Drive), ond Pemberton Lone (Blolr Ocks Drive 1o 1he eastern
HOMICIDE VICTIM - Woter, santiory sewer srov
Prolct Descston: Purchass ond dllvery o comman elecricol sussies | |1 aroect The work nclodes, bt 18 not it fo. moblzaton, orasorotion o rlontof wov, rafic
used by In-house electricians for routine molntenance and repols control, appraximately 14031 SY of &-nch thick reinforced concrate sovement on flex base subgrode,
and aoproximately 37.599 SF of 4-nch thick reinforced concrete sidewol imately 380 LF of
NTTA s occepting bids until 117272025 of 11:00 a.m. CT. 21-nch o 8'x2" reinforced concrate plpe and bax, 3.877 LF of &-Inch 1o Sinch diometer santary sewer
HOMECENTER line, 4300 LF of 8-Inch water line, 0nd any other work deemed necessary by the City of The Colony.
FOR RENT tull prol submit | | Al of the above sholl be done in accordance with TxDOT and NCTCOG specifications with the City of
ocstons ond voiood i 1o WTTAY Markemicee the Colony’s Addendo and as per Insiructions of the Ciy of The Colony City Engineer. All construction
|inttss.rwww.attomerketolace.ora). seauencing and barricoding will be done occording 1o the City of The Colony Standords. The ceinion
. ot prabable construction cost for he overall prolect is $6,062,000.00.
- Emoll for avestions an use
website. | sescttcations. i orososol farms. asdendums and instructions fo bidders mar be dounlooded from
e PlonetBlds wedsil lates, inc. ot 2601
Country Ronch 50 miles Bivd Sue 0 For Worth, TX. 6137 for 81000 por Blecas coll Kevin Gromword! o1 1 764
o DFW In Glen 74 " Kormwararonaih com 1o caorgincte documont Hck uS.
Rose. Hordwood frees
wh rock bottom creek o e i sy no cashler checks for bid bonds, the coshler check will be sent back fo the vendor and
RFB 08106-PGB-08-CN-PD i i o occosted The siacer moas i Preat of Ineurance ond & 81 Bond in e amount
PGBT Seament 8 Wall Stablilzation of five (5%) percent of the bid amount o Joe Oerum (oerum@thecolonytx.gov). Orfainals must be
submithed in he bid pocket OR recelved by the Purchasing Monoger betore fhe nin
Prolect Description: stobilizotion of existing MSE retaining wolls on
Col? LN, PGBT, difch oroding. Inlet odustment, removol & reslocement of riarop. | | Anv auestions regarding the bid process, procedures, plons. or specHications shall be submities
a mow striss, small signs, and povemen! morkings. hroush PlanatBics Al reavonsas wi be otted 10 FianeBids. Any ddenda for i Brolect wil be
Cose Number: 11616 ~pcreage. Farms e e onts e
The North Texs Toltway Authortty (NTTA) s occepting bics for the obove e sobritog win ihe i sacsove ond ~Tied o0t corplerer~ oy soe plcoers, Gy of The
__ |&Ranches "untlh 11720205 o1 11:00 o.m. CT. Bidder raserwea the P o Flech ony or o D, n whota o 1 ot 1o wolve o Intormenlly i ony bid,
- o upload helr bids 10 NTTA® Morketoloce onc 10 Gccest 1he Bid which. 1 1 lacrefion, s n the best imerest of e CIfy of The Colany.
NOTICE (h1ns fwww.nitomarketploce.ors). Bids will be re0d of o virtuol bia
o opening meeting on 1172072025 of 3:00 p.m. CT. See RFB documents for Sincerelv,
Residential rental meeting detoils.
Purchosing Monager
locators are re- A virtuol pre-bid bo held on 11112025 o1 10:00 0.m. CT. e
quired 10 be li- See R B documents for meeting defolls.
censed by the TX
¥ Emoil bidpurchosing®ntto.ors for auestions on repistration or use of
AUTOMOTIVE Real Estate Com- webite.
esiom, Avaiie BID NOTICE
|Aivarado 1.5.D. Is soliciting compeitive sealed arosasals for Kitchen
L Eautoment. C37 bockets mow oo sotommes o conmaciing Amool Trevino
RFB mnnuu:»rn
DNT Segment | Southbound Pavement Rehobiiftation Alvarodo 1D Child Nutrition Department
x
Prolect Descristion; Pavement rshobliation on the Dalics Norh Tollwo 110 South Bl Jockson Drive
(DNT) southbound lanes from Includes ‘Alvarodo, TX
miling of exising cwerioy. -ollm o loors In undeing overmens 917) 7834807
v, removol ot irench dro drolra.
(ntotiotion of vailey sunters, work e ment maes mutt e receivedof the Child Nutiton Desortmant oo loer
| markings, and oo sealing of aseholt shoviders. Than 103 Ionmmnmmurlmmw n be ooened.
i e 5 570.513 Maering on Neverber 7 & 3:00 o h aadress sbovt A1SD
s North Texas Tollway Authority (NTTA) 1s occegting bids for 1he obove | | reserves e iani 1o retecs omy o ah ressonses ond fo GECost he ressonse
. 3 mentioned wiicliaton untl 223 o 11: a.m. CT. B 1ot Is In the best inerest of the dlstrict.
ing rent for a basic uplood thelr nmnnnnuanmux
it which does will be read a1 o virtuol bid
NS o mmuml«.m!maﬁ:wlma See RFB documents for
have all advertised meeting detol
features. et
A virtuol ronce will be held on 111072025 a1 2:00 p.m. CT. Ses RFB 06250 NTT-00.GS-MA
RFB documents for meeting detolls. ‘Attermarket Auto Parts
Emoll avestions e of Prolect Descriation: Purchase of Attermarket auto ports for
website. NTTA venicies ond eauipmen.

NTTA Is occeting bids until 1177272025 ot 11:00 a.m. CT.

NTTA Vendors can resiler, downlooa ful solect detalls and documents. ubit
s s L A questions and uplood bids fo NTTA's Markelploce

RFB 06318-PGB00-CN-PD (1o :/www. nttomorketploce.ora).
PGBT Seq 1-3 Pavement Marking Replocement

Prolect Descrintion: Pavement marking Instollation on PGBT. Retroce

edge lines and skips with 60 mil thermo and 0dd new shodow siriping with

160 1t hermo trom IM2SE 1o ONT. Reirece edes ines with &0l hermo
Jew shodow sirisine wifh 30 nul hermo from ONT o Plone

FREE RENT)
921566483

HOMECENTER
FOR SALE

* Aczeage, fanms and
| Ranches

Emall bidpurchasing@ntto.org for auestions on reglstration or use
of wabstte.

Rooe: Resiocement of vioe ine wiih itavectier barorted
i cllavociver Theme ong 048 mw sncaiow 510g with 100 it harme RFB 0254 NTT00GS-MA
trom Plano Road fo SH-78. General Motors Originol Equipment Monutocturer (OEM)

Ports & Services

The North Texas Tollway Authority (NTTA) Is occeating bids for the obove
[ mentioned sallcitation until 117202025 ot 11:00 o.m. CT. Bloders ore P P
e L Prolect Descristion: Procursmant of OEM restocemsnt gorts ond service

(ntes: e rtomarkstaloce.oro). Bids will be read ot @ vituol bl ede”
V202025 ot 3: . See RFB documents for NTTA Is occenting bids until 1024202 ot 11:00 a.m. CT.

Vendors con reatser, downiopd fuif srclect detolt and documents submit

o virtual pre-bid conference will be held on 11102025 ot 3:00 o.m. CT. auestions and Upload bids fo NTTA'S
reoity.com b . o AP Gocumants sr moeting Setons. (118 /iwww,nHomorket loce.org).
In
providing malate- Emalt Mdporchasing@atia.ens for eusstions on resistration ar see Emall bidpurchosing@ntta.ora for auestions on realstration or
nonce, recalr; olter- of webslte use of webstte.
Make some | |aence . -
money e & misor NOTICE OF SALE NOTICE OF SALE
rom yoor ot 1 Toxts KAUFMAN COUNTY FRESH WATER SUPPLY DISTRICT NO. 44 KAUFMAN COUNTY ERESH WATER SUPPLY DISTRICT NO. 48
YHD, Locol Government (A Polifical Su of the State of Texas 14 Polical uedivision of e Stfe o T
= Cage, Section 729.4. Locoted within Kauiman County, Texcs) Lacored wihin Kautman County, Texas)
in accordonce

5,170,000 600,000
sell your conditions, and Unlimiled Tax Utltity Bonds. Series 2025 Unlimited Tax Utility Bonds. Serles 2025

which considers o 8ids 10 be Submitied: 10:00 A.M., Centrol Time 8ids 10 be Submitted: 10:00 A.M... Central Time
actors In agaltion to Bics 1o be Opened: 12:00 P-M., Centrol Time 8ids 10 be Opened: 1:00 P.M., Central Time
rice. This Reavest Wednesday, November 5. 2025 . November S. 2025
for Competifive Seoled
Buy and sell Prososals (RFCSP) ioce and Time of Sale. Kaufman County Ploce and Time of Sale: The Boord ors of Kautman County
th locals provides suiclent rean Wate Susay W) Mo, 68 (e 'olnrm-) il mesi o rcelve || Fresh Woter Supalv Distic No. 48 (lr- 'numcﬂ il recelve and sub
wi e s 10 and publicly reod bids for the purchase of the 35,170,000 Uniimited Tax Utth-| |licly read bids for the purchase of 1he 56,000,000 Uniimited Tax Utiilty
pebocpdptinates v Bonds, Series 2025 (the “Bonds*) at the desianated meetina ploce oul- Bnce: eries 203 (e ~Banas) i e deslancied m-nn loce outtide
214.745.8123 side the boundaries of the District, at the atfices of Coots Rose, P.C., District, of 1he otfices of Coats 16000
I acamac onsideration Nori Dollos Parkwov. Sults 50, Dollos. Texcs 7518 ot 12:40 ... Canrol || North Dullcs Parkueay, Sute 38, Dotion: Texen 7528 a1 1:00 £ M. Conirct
ARSI the City of Dallas Time. Wednesday, November Time, Wednesday, November 5,
- ase s Decartment of
Aviation. resa of Bids: BIds for the Bonds may be dellvered 1o the District elec- ress of Bids: Bias for the Bonds Seltvarad o the Disrit dc
S S N o roncatl v wieshons r deliverea directty % i DIsirctin  seaes 1 ronreai Iy Selesbone or detvered et 1o e Dlaict i
( vaiosy ) ( watwby ) (( Werttaby ) |Theremitiserre | |vcioe. oooressed o the Prescent ono Boord of Suservisors of Kouimon | [velos. ooa and B0ard of Suservisors o Kautman
Yt s B | sovaber | |County Fresh Water Sussy District No. 4A. and deliversd 1o the District's [ |County Fresn oty Diarict Mo, 48.- ond delterod 1 ihe Dcrs
5 205 o 100 oo Finonclol Advisor, Rober! W. Boirg & Co. Incorsorated, 4801 Woodway Eimoncial Advisc, Robert W o b Co. 1acorso e1od; 480, Wosdwor
CASH FOR YOUR HOUSE COT) 61 Balon Love | [Drive: Sute 162, Houstn: Texcs 708 o v el f TXSoecloDistrict- | |Driv: Slto M€, Mouslon Texos 7705 or vio emall of TXSoeclolDirct
IdF 6rms@rwhoird.com, prior 1o M Time on 10 10:00 A. i

It
Field Flight Deck
Conterence

(1 amanine. Any o rocarved fier 10105 A . Contran Thn, Wetnes

5. 2025, will ot be occes10d 0 will ba refurned unopened.
"Oficlel Bid Form- end o Berk Coshier

1o the order of the District as o

2%\  Any Condition
85 Any price.

Call Jim 972-898-5740 The Bonds In the “Otficiol No- n: The pletely descril
Hice of Sole™ ond the *Preliminary Official Statement= which may be ob- fice of Sole and the “Preliminary OHicial Stotement~ which may
[ S ettt ined trom Robert W. Boird & Co. Incorporcted, 401 Woodwoy Drive, tained trom Robert W. Baird & Co. Incors a0 Woodwary Drive,
Sulle 116-£, Housion. Texza 770541 Financia Advior o he Disiric. The e 1.8, Houston. Toxas 77050, FInancior Adviver 1 1he DIETICT. The
the right 1o relect ony and oll bids and 1o waive ony anc | [Disirict reserves the right 10 relect any ond ali bids and To walve any ond
.COm ol Irregutar es excest time of tina. This notlce does not Consiturs on oll Irregulorities excest time of filing. Tnis nofice does not conatitute an
mmun.nm-ww Ja marety cfice o sole of he Bonds oa ceaued | oHer 1 3l Ine Bonds but s marety nofice ofsoie ofthe Bonds s reauired
. . “ay is™ Sine v . The oter 10 sal the Bonds wilbe made onty of the “Offi- | |by low. The okfer 1o sell the Bonds wil be mode only by meons of the “Offk-
Trusted Texan Buying Houses “as is™ Since 1991 clot Notice of Sate.” inary Officlol Statement,” ond the “Otficial clol Notice of Sale,” “Preliminary Officiol Stotement,” and the “Officiol
\ Bid Form.~ Bld Form.*
Boars of Suservisry 80ard of Suservisors
i Prompt Cash Offer Koutmon Countv Fresh Water Supoly District No. Koutman County Fresh Water Supely District No. 48

Bill Pays Closing Costs

(L Lagalhotices ) ( Logal Natices ) (L Leplhotkes ) (( Legalhotis
Sell Quick Without Repairs

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
TARRANT COUNTY CULTURAL EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE CORPORATION

PITAL REVENUE B¢
(METHODIST HOSPITALS OF DALLAS)

Notice i paraby olven of o eleshonic oublic heorins 10 b held by th Torrant Caunty Cutturd E6-

ucotion Pecliies Fironce Corpermien (the lasuer=) 00 Oclober 31, 224, ut 0:40.0.m
Want N may foin the public hearing on the date and the time Indicated above by dialing ﬂ w.n
£330 (U5 ol rech ond, when sromsrod, enterins the mecting e 260115055768

LOCAL JOURNALISH

t

Bill Jacks

e, 214.478.8979
( vantws Y« Wt to Buy D (L wnttosy

ﬂhr ' The hearing Is reaording he Issuance of obilaations by the Issuer, which may be lssued pursuon!

10 plan of finonce I one o7 mare series, In 0n Ogarevate maximum stated srincisal mount nol 1o

Best Cash Offer For Your House! jif auu =gt iin St s pese b ety
Turn Your Unwanted House Into Cash | it thereot ( d;:&hmmv‘l.wnlllumhﬂnnumnﬂnl:amhu:!ld anire

Nriy heoith care focHlities kocated Gt any one or more of the follawing locations.
each location noted -m (a) 1500 § Dallas Pkwy, Celina,

HOUSE HUNTERS of Dallascom » No Repairs Tk b A 7 ros Bk i R

0 Ye m Home: DFW M * ;l-':"m (C:lll:‘tm .n 1$25.000,000) (collectively, the "NIKI'] "M Obligor Is the Whm
fears s in letroplex ° 2 H Inc! user
$5 More Money For You 5 No Commissions | | pownload

A s e s e 10 st v i et o o oy e e
suonce of Ihe Bonds. Questions or reauests for additional Inform
* No Closing Costs || our app at | i o S R K S e ST e s 0 s
| o oot ewtean A ecesiod serson e s o o e booro o

214-906-2291 1ot uicCoh 7 oy Coings1 | lamencon | [SLEERE S SO S S L
We Buy Houses In Any Condition Or Location

ished and the above-described hearing s to be held In satisfoction of the reavire-

I | o secron oth o e cote




Schedule 2
to Exhibit A

NAMES AND COMMENTS OF PERSONS ATTENDING PUBLIC HEARING

None.



TARRANT COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS COURT COMMUNICATION

Court Date: December 9, 2025 Court Order #: Page: | of 1

. Prepared By: Maegan South, Assistant ~ Approved By: Maegan South, Assistant
Department: Administrator .. .
County Administrator County Administrator

SUBJECT:

Consideration of Amendment No. 2 to the Participation Agreement for the Town of Trophy Club Tax Increment
Financing Zone Number 1

***CONSENT AGENDA ***

COMMISSIONERS COURT ACTION REQUESTED

It is requested that Commissioners Court consider the attached Resolution and Amendment No 2 to the Participation
Agreemetn between the Town of Trophy Club and Tarrant County for Town of Trophy Club Tax Increment Financing Zone
Number One.

BACKGROUND

On April 8, 2014, the Commissioners Court approved County participation in the Town of Trophy Club Increment Financing
Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) One, contributing sixty percent (60%) of its tax increment from the Zone for a period of twenty
(20) years, or until a total County increment contribution of $1,571,011 has been reached. The Hospital District is not
participating in this TIRZ.

On June 7, 2016, the Commissioners Court approved Amendment No. 1 modifying the definition of the tax increment base
year.

On September 22, 2025, the Trophy Club Town Council adopted Ordinance No. 2025-29 restructuring the membership of the
Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) No. 1 Board of Directors so that it is composed of the same members as the Town’s
Economic Development Corporation (EDC) Board of Directors. Due to this restructuring, the agreement must be brought back
before the Court for consideration. This does not change the structure of the County’s membership.

The District Attorney’s Office has reviewed and approved Amendment No. 2.

FISCAL IMPACT

Amendment No. 2 has no fiscal impact to Tarrant County.

PASSED AND APPROVED on December 9, 2025.



COUNTY OF TARRANT

STATE OF TEXAS
Tim O'Hare
County Judge
Roderick Miles, Jr. Matt Krause
Commissioner, Precinct 1 Commissioner, Precinct 3
Alisa Simmons Manny Ramirez

Commissioner, Precinct 2 Commissioner, Precinct 4

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

District Attorney’s Office*

*By law, the District Attorney’s Office may only approve contracts for its clients. We reviewed this document as to form from
our client’s legal perspective. Other parties may not rely on this approval. Instead, those parties should seek contract review
from independent counsel.

Attachments

Amendment No. 2 to TC and Tarrant County TIRZ Agreement.pdf

Resolution.pdf


https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/6915f1cc749a970048342f3f/Amendment_No._2_to_TC_and_Tarrant_County_TIRZ_Agreement.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/6915f1cc749a970048342f3f/Amendment_No._2_to_TC_and_Tarrant_County_TIRZ_Agreement.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/6915f1cc749a970048342f3f/Amendment_No._2_to_TC_and_Tarrant_County_TIRZ_Agreement.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/6915f1cc749a970048342f3f/Resolution.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/6915f1cc749a970048342f3f/Resolution.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/6915f1cc749a970048342f3f/Resolution.pdf

AMENDMENT NO.2 TO
TOWN OF TROPHY CLUB AND TARRANT COUNTY, TEXAS
AGREEMENT TO PARTICIPATE IN
TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER ONE,
TOWN OF TROPHY CLUB, TEXAS

This Amendment No. 2 to Town of Trophy Club and Tarrant County, Texas, Agreement
to Participate in Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Number One, Town of Trophy Club, Texas
(“Amendment”) is entered into by and between the Town of Trophy Club, a Texas home rule
municipality organized under the laws of the State of Texas (the “Town” or “City”) and Tarrant
County, Texas (the “County” or “Taxing Unit”). The Town and County are referred to collectively
as the “Parties” or individually as a “Party.”

The Town and County hereby agree that the following statements are true and correct and
constitute the basis upon which the Town and the County have entered into this Amendment:

A.

On August 19, 2013, the Town Council of the Town of Trophy Club, Texas (the
“Council”) adopted Town Ordinance No. 2013-23 establishing a board of directors
for the Zone (the “TIRZ Board”) and designating certain real property generally
located at Trophy Wood Drive and Highway 114 as Tax Increment Reinvestment
Zone Number One, Town of Trophy Club, Texas (the “Zone”). Town Ordinance
No. 2013-23, as amended, is hereby incorporated into this Amendment by
reference for all purposes; and

On or about April 8, 2014, the Town and County entered into an Agreement (the
“Participation Agreement”) under which County agreed to deposit sixty percent
(60%) of the County’s Tax Increment, up to a maximum of $1,571,011, into the
Tax Increment Fund for the Zone, as specifically provided in that Participation
Agreement; and

On or about June 14, 2016, the Parties approved Amendment No. 1 to the
Participation Agreement (“Amendment No. 17) to correctly define the Tax
Increment Base for the Zone; and

The Town desires to streamline operations and promote administrative consistency
for the TIRZ Board by aligning the membership of the TIRZ Board with that of the
Town’s Economic Development Corporation Board of Directors; and

Section 311.009(a) of the Texas Tax Code provides that the board of directors of a
reinvestment zone must consist of at least five (5) and not more than fifteen (15)

members, and allows the governing body of the municipality to appoint not more
than ten (10) directors to the TIRZ Board; and

On September 22, 2025, the Town Council adopted Ordinance No. 2025- , to

increase the membership of the TIRZ Board to eight (8) members, which includes
seven (7) members of the Town’s Economic Development Corporation Board of

Page 1 0of 3



Directors, as appointed and serving pursuant to Chapter 505 of the Texas Local
Government Code, or other individuals eligible under Section 311.009 of the Texas
Tax Code, and one (1) member appointed by the County; and

G. The Parties desire to amend the Agreement, as amended by Amendment No. 1, as
herein set forth in this Amendment No. 2.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the conditions set forth herein, the
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Town and the County do hereby contract,
covenant, and agree as follows:

1. Recitals. The Parties hereby agree that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and
form the basis upon which they have entered into the Agreement, as amended by that Amendment
No. 1, and this Amendment No. 2. The recitals in the Agreement are incorporated into this
Amendment No. 2 as if fully set forth herein, except as amended by this Amendment No. 2, and
the defined terms in the Agreement shall have the meaning assigned to such terms in the
Agreement, unless otherwise defined herein.

2, Amendment. Section 4.4. TIRZ Board Membership, of the Agreement is hereby removed
and replaced in its entirety to provide as follows:

“Pursuant to Section 3 of Town Ordinance No. 2013-23, creating the Zone, as amended
by Town Ordinance  No. 2025- during the term of the Zone, the TIRZ Board shall consist
of up to eight (8) members. The TIRZ Board members shall consist of seven (7) members of the
Town’s Economic Development Corporation Board of Directors, as appointed and serving
pursuant to Chapter 505 of the Texas Local Government Code, and the Town Council may also
appoint other individuals eligible under Section 311.009 of the Texas Tax Code. One (1) member
shall be appointed by Tarrant County, should the County choose to exercise its appointment
authority in accordance with the Interlocal Participation Agreement and Section 311.009 of the
Texas Tax Code. All members shall serve for staggered terms of two (2) years each. The Town
Council shall appoint a chairman from among the members. The TIRZ Board may elect a vice-
chairman, and other officers as needed. The TIRZ Board shall make recommendations to the Town
Council regarding the administration and operation of the Zone and shall perform all duties
imposed upon it by Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code, including powers of a municipality under
Chapter 380, Local Government Code. The TIRZ Board shall not have authority to issue bonds,
impose taxes or fees, exercise the power of eminent domain, or give final approval to the Zone’s
final project and financing plan without approval by the Town Council.”

3. This Amendment No. 2 contains the final written expression of the Town and the County
with respect to the subject matter hereof. Except as amended herein, all other terms and conditions
of the Agreement, as amended by Amendment No. 1, shall remain in full force and effect. This
Amendment No. 2 may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. The execution
of this Amendment No. 2 may be accomplished by facsimile or electronic signatures and shall be
deemed fully executed upon the exchange among the parties of signed facsimile or electronic
copies of this Amendment No. 2.

Page 2 of 3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Amendment No. 2 to be
executed by their duly authorized officers and to be effective as of the last date set forth below.

AGREED AND EXECUTED as of the last date indicated below:

TARRANT COUNTY
(County):

By:

Tim O’Hare, County Judge

Date:

ATTEST:

By:

Deputy County Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:

Assistant Criminal District Attorney

TOWN OF TROPHY CLUB,
TEXAS (Town):

By@

Brandon Wright, Town Manager

Date: 2 SEPT 202¢—

ATTEST:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: m
Dedt | Roégi\al,/"@%n Attorney

Approved by Trophy Club Town Council on
09/22/2025

Page 3 of 3



RESOLUTION

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT
FOR TOWN OF TROPHY CLUB TAX INCREMENT FINANCING
REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER ONE

WHEREAS, on April 8, 2014, the Town of Trophy Club and Tarrant County, entered into an agreement
under which the County agreed to deposit sixty percent (60%) of the County’s Tax Increment into the TIF District’s
Tax Increment Fund (“Participation Agreement”), as specifically provided in that Participation Agreement; and

WHEREAS, on June 7,2017, the Commissioners Court approved Amendment No. 1 modifying the definition
of the tax increment base year; and

WHEREAS, Tarrant County has been requested to approve Amendment No. 2 to the Participation
Agreement, restructuring the membership of the TIF No. 1 Board of Directors so that it is composed of the same
members as the Town’s Economic Development Corporation (EDC) Board of Directors.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

That the Tarrant County Commissioners Court hereby approves the modification of the membership structure;
that Amendment No. 2 to the Participation Agreement for the County be and is hereby approved; that the
Commissioners Court hereby agrees to enter into the Amendment No. 2 to the Participation Agreements as a party
thereto; and the County Judge of the County be and is hereby authorized to execute said Amendment No. 2 to the
Participation Agreement on behalf of the County and Commissioners Court substantially in the form of the attached
hereto and carry out the terms thereof at the appropriate time(s).

PASSED AND APPROVED, IN OPEN COURT, this 16" day of December 2025, through Court
Order No.

Tim O’Hare, County Judge

Roderick Miles Alisa Simmons
Commissioner, Precinct 1 Commissioner, Precinct 2
Matt Krause Manny Ramirez

Commissioner, Precinct 3 Commissioner, Precinct 4



TARRANT COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS COURT COMMUNICATION

Court Date: December 9, 2025 Court Order #: Page: | of 1

. .. A d By: M South, Assistant
Department: Archives Prepared By: Jaimi Parker pprove y . acgan sou ssistan
County Administrator

SUBJECT:

Consideration to Accept Monetary Donations from Various Individuals to the Tarrant County Archives

*** CONSENT AGENDA ***

COMMISSIONERS COURT ACTION REQUESTED

It is requested that the Commissioners Court accept monetary donations from various individuals to the Tarrant County
Archives.

BACKGROUND

The Tarrant County Archives donation account was created for the acceptance of monetary donations for use by the Tarrant
County Archives.

The following donations are included in this action.

o Jonnetta Selvidge - $2.30
e Stacy Luecker - $5.00

FISCAL IMPACT

Funds in the amount of $7.30 will be deposited into the Tarrant County Archives donation account: T2100-2026 Historical
Commission Archives Fund/ 5910200000 Historical Commision Archives/ 484002 Donations - Historical Commission.



TARRANT COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS COURT COMMUNICATION

Court Date: December 9, 2025 Court Order #: Page: | of 1

Prepared By: Mark Kratovil, Assistant ~ Approved By: Mark Kratovil, Assistant

Department: Auditor . L
P District Attorney District Attorney

SUBJECT:

Consideration to Request Written Report of Finances for Fiscal Year 2025 Under Health & Safety Code Section 775.036
from Tarrant County Emergency Services District No. 1

*¥** CONSENT AGENDA ***

COMMISSIONERS COURT ACTION REQUESTED

It is requested that the Commissioners Court consider placing a written request with Tarrant County Emergency Services
District No. 1 (“ESD”) for a report of the ESD’s budget, tax rate, and debt service for FY 2025.

BACKGROUND

Under Texas Health & Safety Code section 775.036(a)(5), the Tarrant County Commissioners Court may request a written
report from the ESD regarding the ESD’s budget, tax rate, and debt service for the preceding fiscal year. Any request for such a
report must be made to the ESD no later than December 31st. The ESD must deliver the report to the Commissioners Court no
later than February 1, 2026. If approved, the Tarrant County Administrator will place a written request with the ESD on behalf
of the Commissioners Court for a written report pursuant to section 775.036(a)(5) for fiscal year 2025.

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact associated with this action.



TARRANT COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS COURT COMMUNICATION

Court Date: December 9, 2025 Court Order #: Page: | of 85
Department: Auditor Prepared By: Rebecca Powell Approved By: Kimberly Buchanan
SUBJECT:

Receive and File the Tarrant County Financial Statements for the Twelve Months Ended September 30, 2025

*** CONSENT AGENDA **%*

COMMISSIONERS COURT ACTION REQUESTED

It is requested that the Commissioners Court consider receiveing and filing the Tarrant County Unaudited Financial Statements
for the twelve-month period ended September 30, 2025.

BACKGROUND

As a matter of record, Tarrant County Financial Statements are periodically filed with Commissioners Court. The monthly
financial statements are published on the County's website unde the Auditor's Office department.

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact associated with this item.

Attachments

SEPT25 Financials 12.1.2025 - redacted.pdf



https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/tarrantcountytx/pdfs/topics/691e2cd19b2f6c0038fa9d6a/SEPT25_Financials_12.1.2025_-_redacted.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/a<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>